COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE CITY OF CHICAGO

AND

THE INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF TEAMSTERS, TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 743

Effective: October 24, 2024

Expiration: June 30, 2027

Table of Contents

AGREEMENT	
ARTICLE I RECO	OGNITION
Section 1.1.	1
Section 1.2	Classification Changes
ARTICLE II MAI	NAGEMENT'S RIGHTS 2
Section 2.1	Management's Rights
Section 2.2	Rules and Regulations3
ARTICLE III	3
HOURS OF WO	DRK
Section 3.1	Normal Workweek and Workday 3
Section 3.2	Changes4
Section 3.3	Scheduled Temporary Cessation or Reduction of Operations
Section 3.4	Furlough Days
Section 3.5	Overtime
Section 3.6	Reporting Pay5
Section 3.7	Call-in Pay 6
ARTICLE IV W	AGES, INSURANCE AND ALLOWANCE
Section 4.1	Wages 6
Section 4.2	Pay During Absence
Section 4.3	Pay on Promotion or Transfer 8
Section 4.4	No Pay During Strikes or Lockout8
Section 4.5	Life Insurance
Section 4.6	Health Insurance
Section 4.7	Plans Administration
Section 4.8	Joint Labor Management Cooperation Committee on Health Care9

Section 4.9 Reduction from Full Time to Part Time Status
Section 4.10 Automobile Reimbursement
Section 4.11 Relief in Higher Classification
Section 4.12 Uniform Allowance
Section 4.13 Deferred Compensation
Section 4.14 COVID-19 Pandemic Pay
ARTICLE V ABSENCE FROM WORK 12
Section 5.1 Holidays
Section 5.5 Jury Duty
Section 5.7 Military Leave
Section 5.8 Family and Medical Leave
Section 5.9 Medical Leave
Section 5.10 Personal Leave
Section 5.11 Duty Disability
Section 5.12 Religious Day Accommodation
Section 5.13 Paid Parental Leave
ARTICLE VI
SENIORITY
Section 6.1 Definition of Seniority of Continuous Service
Section 6.2 Probation/Career Service Status
Section 6.3 Interruption in Service
Section 6.4 Break in Service
Section 6.5 Filling Of Permanent Vacancies
Section 6.6 Layoff and Recall
Section 6.7 Balancing the Workforce
Section 6.8 Detailing 27

Section 6.9 Seniority Lists	28
Section 6.10 Reciprocity	28
ARTICLE VII	29
DISCIPLINE AND GRIEVANCE/ARBITRATION	29
Section 7.1 Discipline	29
Section 7.2 Grievance and Arbitration Procedures	33
ARTICLE VIII	36
EDUCATION, TRAINING, AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	36
Section 8.1 Tuition Reimbursement	36
Section 8.2 Continuing Education Outside the Department	37
Section 8.3 Protocol	37
Section 8.4 Preceptors	37
Section 8.5 Training	37
Section 8.6 Advisory Training Committee	37
ARTICLE IX	38
DUES/FAIR SHARE FEE DEDUCTION	38
Section 9.1 Dues Deduction	38
Section 9.2 Fair Share	38
Section 9.3 Right of Non-Association	38
Section 9.4 Condition of Employment	38
Section 9.5 Indemnity	39
ARTICLE X	39
UNION REPRESENTATION	39
Section 10.1 Union Representatives	39
Section 10.2 Investigation and Processing of Grievances	39
Section 10.3 - Right of Access	30

Section 10.4	Contract Negotiations)
Section 10.5	Labor-Management Meetings)
Section 10.6	Orientation)
ARTICLE XI	41	L
NO STRIKE OR L	OCKOUT	1
Section 11.1	No Strike42	1
Section 11.2	Union Responsibility	1
Section 11.3	Discipline For Breach	1
Section 11.4	No Lockout 4	1
ARTICLE XII	4	1
SUBCONTRACT	NG4	1
Section 12.1	4	1
Section 12.2	4	1
Section 12.3	4	2
ARTICLE XIII	4	2
MISCELLANEOU	JS4	2
Section 13.1	Bulletin Boards4	.2
Section 13.2	Delegation4	2
Section 13.3	Performance Evaluations4	12
Section 13.4	Prohibition Against Discrimination4	13
Section 13.5	Reasonable Accommodation	13
Section 13.6	Health and Safety	14
Section 13.7	Extension of Benefits	14
Section 13.8	Protocol Committee	14
ARTICLE XIV		44
DRUG AND ALC	COHOL PROGRAM	44

Section 14.1 Policy Statement	4	
Section 14.2 Definitions4	14	
Section 14.3 Disciplinary Action4	15	
Section 14.4 Drug and Alcohol Testing4	16	
Section 14.5 Employee Assistance Program4	18	
ARTICLE XV COMPLETE AGREEMENT, WAIVER AND SEPARABILITY4	18	
Section 15.1 Complete Agreement	18	
Section 15.2 Waiver	48	
Section 15.3 Modifications	49	
Section 15.4 Separability	49	
ARTICLE XVI	49	
TERM OF AGREEMENT	49	
Section 16.1 Term of Agreement	49	
Section 16.2 Health Plan Reopener	50	
APPENDIX A	53	
Salary Schedules	.54	
APPENDIX B	60	
APPENDIX C	62	
EXHIBIT 1	66	
EXHIBIT 2	72	
EXHIBIT 3	.73	
APPENDIX D	.75	
APPENDIX E76		
SIDE LETTERS	79	
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT ON TELEWORKING	85	

AGREEMENT

This collective bargaining agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between the City of Chicago, an Illinois Municipal Corporation ("Employer"), and the International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Teamsters Local Union No. 743 ("Union"), for the purpose of establishing, through the process of collective bargaining, certain provisions covering wages, and other terms and conditions of employment for the employees represented by the Union. It is the purpose and intent of the parties, through this Agreement, to establish and promote harmonious relations between the parties; provide efficient, uninterrupted and effective services to the public; provide an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences under this Agreement; and establish and maintain wages, hours and terms and conditions of employment through collective bargaining. Where any express term of this Agreement conflicts with any ordinance, rules, regulations, personnel rules, interpretations, practices or policies to the contrary, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

Section 1.1

The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining representative for all non-excluded employees employed by the Employer's Chicago Department of Public Health ("CDPH") in the job classifications Public Health Nurse ("PHN") III and PHN IV, for the purpose of negotiating about wages, hours and conditions of employment. Should the parties agree that other titles appropriately belong in the bargaining unit, they shall jointly stipulate to an amendment or clarification of the unit, even if there are no incumbents in the title at the time. Such stipulation shall be filed with the Illinois Labor Relations Board in accordance with its procedures. In the event that the Employer establishes any new job classification to perform bargaining unit work, the Employer will promptly notify the Union of its decision, and, upon request from the Union, meet and discuss any issue as to whether the new classification appropriately belongs in the bargaining unit.

Excluded from the bargaining unit are all managerial, supervisory, confidential, and exempt, and emergency employees, as defined by the City of Chicago Personnel Rules and the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act.

Section 1.2 Classification Changes

The Employer shall have the right to increase or decrease the working force, to eliminate, change or combine job classifications in whole or in part, and to establish new job classifications as the Employer may determine to be necessary from time to time for the efficient conduct of its business. The Employer shall notify the Union of the establishment of a new job classification arguably within the bargaining unit. The Employer shall set the wage rate for the new job classification. Upon request, the Employer will discuss the new rate with the Union. If the Union does not agree with the new rate set by the Employer, the Union may grieve the Employer's decision through the grievance and arbitration procedure under this Agreement.

ARTICLE II MANAGEMENTS RIGHTS

Section 2.1 Management's Rights

It is agreed that the Union and the employees will cooperate with the Employer to liberally construe this Agreement to facilitate the efficient, flexible and uninterrupted operation of the City. The Union recognizes that certain rights, powers, and responsibilities belong solely to and are exclusively vested in the Employer except only as they may be subject to a specific and express obligation of this Agreement. Among these rights, powers, and responsibilities, but not wholly inclusive, are all matters concerning or related to the management of the City and administration thereof, and the right:

- a. to determine the organization and operation of the Employer and any department or agency thereof;
- b. to determine and change the purpose, composition and function of each of its constituent departments and subdivisions;
- c. to set reasonable standards for the services to be offered to the public;
- d. to direct its employees, including the right to assign work and overtime;
- e. to hire, examine, classify, select, promote, restore to career service positions, train, transfer, assign and schedule its employees;
- f. to increase, reduce, change, modify or alter the composition and size of the work force, including the right to relieve employees from duties because of the lack of work or funds or other proper reasons;
- g. to contract out work;
- h. to establish work schedules and to determine the starting and quitting time, and the number of hours worked;

- i. to establish, modify, combine or abolish job positions and classifications;
- j. to add, delete or alter methods of operation, equipment or facilities;
- k. to determine the locations, methods, means and personnel by which operations are to be conducted, including the right to determine whether services are to be provided or purchased;
- 1. to establish, implement and maintain an effective internal control program;
- m. to suspend, demote, discharge, or take other disciplinary action against employees; and
- n. to add to, delete or alter policies, procedures, rules and regulations.

Inherent managerial functions, prerogatives and policy-making rights, whether listed above or not, which the Employer has not expressly restricted by a specific provision of this Agreement are not in any way, directly or indirectly, subject to internal or external review, provided that none of these rights is exercised contrary to or inconsistent with other terms of this Agreement.

Section 2.2 Rules and Regulations

The Employer shall have the right to make, and from time to time change, reasonable rules and regulations and to require employees' compliance therewith upon notification. The Employer will notify the Union within ten (10) days of such change, and upon the Union's request, will discuss the changes with the Union. The Union's request to meet or discuss will not delay the implementation of the changes unless the parties mutually agree to delay compliance/implementation.

ARTICLE III HOURS OF WORK

Section 3.1 Normal Workweek and Workday

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a guarantee of, or limitation on, the number of hours to be worked per day, per week, or for any other period of time, except only as specifically provided in Section 3.6 of this Agreement. The Employer's work week shall begin at 12:00 A.M. Sunday (one minute after 11:59 P.M. Saturday) and shall end at 12:00 A.M. the following Sunday. The normal workweek for employees shall consist of thirty seven and one-half (37.5) hours worked, with two (2) consecutive days off, in accordance with current practices. The normal workday for employees shall consist of eight (8) consecutive hours, including seven and one-half (7.5) hours worked per day, including an unpaid lunch period of one-half (1/2) hour. The Employer may set up

schedules for the various work shifts, as required. Each normal shift shall consist of seven and one half (7.5) hours of work, an unpaid lunch period of one-half (1/2) hour and two (2) paid fifteen (15) minute rest periods.

Section 3.2 Changes

The Employer may change employees' normal workday or workweek or shift/schedule upon reasonable prior notice to, and upon request, discussion with the Union. In the case of an unforeseen Public Health emergency or City-wide outbreak, the notice and discussion provisions above shall not apply. In such emergencies, the City will provide twenty-four hour notice to the Union, if possible, and such notice will contain the name(s) of the bargaining unit employees impacted by the change.

Section 3.3 Scheduled Temporary Cessation or Reduction of Operations

In the event the Employer intends to exercise its managerial right to schedule a planned, City-wide temporary cessation or reduction of operations for economic or other legitimate operational reasons (e.g., as it did with the implementation of "Reduced City Service Days" in 2008 and 2009), resulting in a reduced number of days and/or hours worked for bargaining unit employees, the Employer will provide the Union with at least fifteen (15) days advance notice before implementing such scheduled temporary cessation or reduction of operations, and, upon request of the Union, will meet and discuss the impact on employees. Nothing in this section shall be construed as in any way diminishing or otherwise affecting the Employer's authority to exercise any other managerial right, consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

Section 3.4 Furlough Days

Employees shall be eligible to participate in the Employer's Voluntary Unpaid Furlough Program, under the same terms and conditions applicable to all non-represented City employees, which terms and conditions may be subject to change from time to time. The current terms of the Voluntary Unpaid Furlough Program are described in part G of the City's Salary Resolution. It is understood and agreed that the City's decision to grant or deny any request for unpaid furlough time is entirely discretionary, and the City's determination as to what is in the best interests of maintaining its operations will always take precedence. The parties further understand and agree that all aspects of the City's Voluntary Unpaid Furlough Program, including the City's decision to grant or deny any unpaid furlough day request, are excluded from the grievance and arbitration provisions of Article VII of this Agreement.

Section 3.5 Overtime

(a) Employees shall be required to work reasonable overtime hours, as a condition of continued employment, whenever requested by the Employer to do so. The Employer shall make a reasonable effort to give employees advance notice when they are to be required to work overtime.

- (b) Overtime on Regularly-Scheduled Days Off: When employees are required by the Employer to work on a regularly scheduled day off, any hours worked on said day shall be compensated for in the form of cash at one and one-half times the regular hourly rate, on the basis of completed fifteen (15) minute segments, provided the employee works his or her full regular schedule within the Employer workweek in which the day off occurs. In determining whether an employee has worked his or her full regular schedule, any excused holidays, vacation days, and/or furlough days taken in accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be considered days worked, in addition to days actually worked.
- Overtime during the Workweek on Regular Workdays: Additionally, all hours (c) worked and approved under the Employers rules in excess of forty (40) hours worked in a workweek on regular workdays (which does not include work on a regularly-scheduled day off), whether of an emergency nature or non-emergency nature shall be compensated at one and one-half (1 ½) times the employee's regular straight time hourly rate, on the basis of completed fifteen (15) minute segments in the form of cash. Work performed between thirty-seven and one-half (37.5) and forty (40) hours worked in a workweek on regular workdays shall be compensated at the employee's regular straight time hourly rate in the form of compensatory time or cash, at the employee's election with notice of the electing being made no later than the first regular workday following the date on which the employee performed said work. Sick leave, vacation, compensatory time, union business leave and/or other paid time off shall not be included as hours worked for purposes of paragraph (c) of this Section. Notwithstanding the first sentence of this paragraph (3.5c). when an employee is required by the Employer to work on a Sunday when Sunday is not part of the employee's regular work week, that employee shall be compensated at two (2) times the employee's regular straight time hourly rate, on the basis of completed fifteen (15) minute segments, in the form of cash.
- (d) All overtime earned under this section shall be compensated in the form of cash.
- (e) All compensatory time must be used on or before December 31 of the calendar year in which it is earned, subject to the Employer's operational needs and scheduling requirements. If any compensatory time is not used by December 31 of the calendar year in which it is earned, the employee will be compensated for said time earned in the form of cash instead of compensatory time. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any compensatory time earned in December of any year may be used on or before March 31 of the following calendar year, subject to the Employer's operational needs and scheduling requirements. If any compensatory time earned in December is not used by March 31 of the following calendar year, the employee will be compensated for said time earned in the form of cash instead of compensatory time.

Section 3.6 Reporting Pay

An employee who reports for work at her/his assigned day and starting time,

without having been previously notified at his/her last known address or telephone number, as recorded in the personnel file, at least three (3) hours prior to starting time to report, shall be given a minimum of two (2) hours work or two (2) hours pay. However, the foregoing obligation shall not apply in the event the failure to provide work is because of an emergency, an Act of God, a failure of heat, light or power, or by any other cause beyond the control of the City. The employee must accept any nursing job to which she/he may be assigned.

Section 3.7 Call-in Pay

Employees called in on a scheduled work day to work hours outside their scheduled work hours, where the call-in hours are not contiguous to the beginning or end of the employee's scheduled work day, shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours of pay at the employee's regular straight time hourly rate in the form of cash beginning from the time they arrive at the designated work location.

ARTICLE IV WAGES, INSURANCE AND ALLOWANCE

Section 4.1 Wages

(a) Effective 7/1/18, the adjusted SZ Salary Schedule as attached will be implemented. This adjustment reflects that, effective 7/1/18, employees normal work week will no longer consist of 35 hours worked; their normal work day will no longer consist of eight (8) consecutive hours, including seven (7) hours worked per day, and their normal shift will no longer consist of seven (7) hours of work, an unpaid lunch period of one hour, and two (2) paid fifteen (15) minute rest periods. Instead, effective 7/1/18, employees normal workweek shall consist of thirty seven and one half (37.5) hours worked; their normal work day shall consists of eight (8) consecutive hours, including seven and one half (7.5) hours worked pay day, and their normal shift shall consist of seven and one half (7.5) hours of work, an unpaid lunch period of one half (1/2) hour, and two (2) paid fifteen (15) minute rest periods.

a. Effective on the following dates, the City will make the wage adjustments as follows:

 Effective 7/1/22
 3.0%

 Effective 7/1/23
 3.0%

Effective 1/1/24 3.0% - 5.0%*

Effective 1/1/25	3.0% - 5.0%*
Effective 1/1/26	3.0% - 5.0%*
Effective 1/1/27	3.25%

Agreement effective through June 30, 2027

*In each of the three years 2024, 2025 and 2026, the percentage increase varies between 3.00% and 5.00%, depending upon the U.S. City Average CPI-U. If the CPI-U is 5.00% or more, then the percentage increase shall be 5.00%. If the CPI-U is between 3.00% and 5.00%, the percentage increase shall be equal to the CPI-U, rounded to the nearest tenth of one percent. The U.S. City Average June CPI-U released in July of the preceding year will be used to determine the percentage increases in the three years 2024, 2025 and 2026.

(b) Effective on the dates below, the City will adjust the wages for the PHN IIIs and IVs as follows:

Effective 7/1/20 2.0% Effective 7/1/21 1.0%

b. Salary Schedule Adjustments: The parties agree to make the following adjustment on the SZ salary schedule on the dates below:

- (1) Effective January 1, 2024, reduce the continuous service requirements by one (1) year in Steps 7 through 10 on the SZ schedule.
- (2) Effective January 1, 2025, or 30 days after ratification, whichever date is later, combine the titles of Public Health Nurse III and Public Health Nurse IV into a new title called Supervising Public Health Nurse, Grade 7. Current Public Health Nurse IIIs and IVs will be placed into the Supervising Public Health Nurse title. Placement on and movement along the salary schedule will be done consistent with City practices.
- (3) Effective January 1, 2026 add a new 11th Step on the SZ schedule after twenty-one (21) years of continuous service, at an amount 3.25% higher than the salary for Step 10.

Section 4.2 Pay During Absence

All leaves of absence or other time off shall be without pay except as otherwise expressly provided in Article V of this Agreement.

Section 4.3 Pay on Promotion or Transfer

Employees promoted or transferred to a different job title shall be compensated in accordance with the then current Regulations Governing the Administration of the Compensation Plan and Employee benefits for Classified Positions Set Forth in the Annual Appropriation Ordinance.

Section 4.4 No Pay During Strikes or Lockout

Employees shall not be entitled to any wages or benefits whatsoever if, despite all efforts to maintain peace, they are engaged in a strike, work stoppage, walkout or other interruption of work, or are locked out by the Employer.

Section 4.5 Life Insurance

- (a) The Employer agrees to provide \$25,000 Group Term Life Insurance at no cost to the employee, subject to Section 4.8 below. Employees must complete a City of Chicago Group Term Life Insurance enrollment form set, including the employee beneficiary section of the form set, in order to qualify for coverage in the Basic Group Term Life Plan. The failure of the employee to complete the enrollment form set will result in termination of the employee's Basic Group Term Life Insurance coverage.
- (b) The Employer agrees to provide procedures for employees to purchase Group Term Life Insurance, and Universal Life Insurance, in addition to the basic Group Term Life Insurance coverage described above, at additional cost to the employee. Such options are outlined in Appendix B of this Agreement.

Section 4.6 Health Insurance

- (a) The Employer shall provide to employees and their eligible dependents Group Health, Dental and Vision Care as set forth in Appendix C of this Agreement, subject to Section 4.8 below. If any other bargaining unit of employees of the Employer is required to pay less in premium contributions or receive higher benefit levels under the medical care plan, then this unit of employees shall pay the same and/or receive the same benefit levels.
- (b) <u>Family Coverage:</u> Where both husband and wife or other family members eligible under one family coverage are employed by the Employer, the Employer shall pay for only one family insurance or family health plan.
- (c) <u>Maintenance of Insurance</u>: The current practice permitting employees to use vacation or other time due during an illness in order to keep his/her insurance in effect shall continue for the term of the Agreement.
 - (d) Employees who participate in the Employer medical plan or an HMO shall make the following contributions toward their health care coverage, based on the applicable percentage of their base salary, subject to the then applicable salary cap:

				Salary
	Single	Employee + 1	Family	Cap
July 1, 2017	1.2921%	1.9854%	2.4765	\$90,000
July 1, 2018	1.7921%	2.4854%	2.9765%	\$100,000
January 1, 2019	2.2921%	2.9854%	3.4765%	\$115,000
January 1, 2020	2.7921%	3.4854%	3.9765%	\$130,000

All contributions shall be made on a pre-tax basis and are payable on a per pay period basis.

- (e) Effective January 1, 2019, prescription drug benefits shall be subject to an annual deductible of \$35 per household. Effective January 1, 2021, prescription drug benefits shall be subject to an annual deductible of \$75 per household.
- (f) The Employer and the Union will establish a working group to study the feasibility of creating eligibility for employees who retire to be afforded insurance coverage of the applicable COBRA rates until Medicare eligibility. Nothing prevents the working group from including other bargaining units to study this issue.

Section 4.7 Plans Administration

The insurance plans are provided through contracts between the Employer and insurance companies and/or plan administrators. These plans, and matters concerning their administration, are not subject to grievance or arbitration. To the extent that there may be any conflict between said plans and this Agreement, the provisions of the plans shall prevail. Detailed information regarding the plans will be made available upon request at reasonable times.

Section 4.8 Joint Labor Management Cooperation Committee on Health Care

- (a) The Employer and the Union (the "Parties") agree to be bound by determinations and recommendations of the Joint Labor Management Cooperation Committee ("LMCC") negotiated between the Employer and the Coalition of Unionized Public Employees ("COUPE") and created pursuant to applicable state and federal law. The purpose of the LMCC is to research and make recommendations and decisions within its authority related to the achievement of significant and measurable savings in the cost of employee health care during the term of this Agreement. The LMCC Agreement and Declaration of Trust ("Trust Agreement") is attached to this Agreement as Appendix D.
 - (b) The Trust Agreement shall address, without limitation, the following:
- 1. Formation of a Committee to govern the LMCC consisting of up to thirty (30) Trustees, with half of the Trustees to be appointed by the Employer, and half to be appointed by unions who represent employees of the Employer, and who have also agreed to participate in the LMCC ("Participating Labor Unions").

- 2. Appointment by the City and Participating Labor Unions of a Co-Chair and Vice-Cochair as designated in the Trust Agreement.
- 3. Authority of the LMCC to make recommendations and modifications in the health plan expected to result in savings and cost containment.
- 4. Establishment of a Trust Fund with contributions provided by the City of Chicago and third parties.
- (c) Beginning no later than 2020, members of the Teamsters Nurses bargaining unit will be subject to the Plan Design changes implemented through the LMCC resulting from the commitment in the COUPE collective bargaining agreements to achieve savings in the targeted amount provided for in those agreements. In the event such changes are implemented earlier than 2020, members of the Teamsters Nurses bargaining unit shall be subject to such changes at the same time as the rest of the LMCC.

Section 4.9 Reduction from Full Time to Part Time Status

Employees will not be reduced from full-time to part-time status solely to avoid the payment of fringe benefits under this Agreement.

Section 4.10 Automobile Reimbursement

Employees who are required by the Employer to use their own automobiles in the performance of their job shall receive mileage reimbursement at the then effective rate recognized by the Internal Revenue Service, with a maximum of \$550 \$675.00 per month, beginning on the effective date of ratification of this Agreement. Thereafter, the maximum reimbursement will increase effective each February 1 by the percentage increase in the Transportation Expenditure Category of the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U): U.S. City Average for the previous year, as rounded to the nearest \$5 increment. Employees seeking mileage reimbursement must submit that request on a form provided by the Employer. Payment for mileage expenses will be made on a monthly basis. In the event that during the life of this Agreement the Employer shall implement for any group of employees an automobile expense reimbursement program which is more favorable to employees than the provisions of this paragraph, upon notice from the Union, the Employer will meet and discuss with representatives of the Union the possible application of said new program to employees covered by this Agreement.

Section 4.11 Relief in Higher Classification

An employee who is directed to and does perform substantially all of the duties and responsibilities of a higher rated classification within the bargaining unit to the satisfaction of the Employer for five (5) days shall be paid at the higher rate. Employees paid for acting in a higher-rated job shall be paid as if they had been promoted to the higher-rated job. An employee who is requested by the Employer to assume substantially all of the duties and responsibilities of a higher rated classification outside of the bargaining unit will not be

paid at the higher rate, but may accept or decline the assignment.

The time limits for any assignments to higher-rated jobs shall be ninety (90) days, except where a regular incumbent is on leave of absence, in which case it shall be six (6) months. The time limits may be extended by mutual agreement of parties. The Employer shall not arbitrarily remove employees out of the higher classification solely to defeat the purpose of this section.

The Employer will equitably rotate assignments to higher rated jobs on the basis of seniority among the employees at the work location who have the then present ability to do the job without further training. In the event the Employer makes a rotational assignment to a higher rated job out of seniority order, the Employer will notify the Union, and, following a request from the Union, will meet and discuss the Employer's rationale for doing so, as well as its plan for rotating such future assignments at that work location.

Section 4.12 Uniform Allowance

Each employee who is required to wear a uniform by the Employer will continue to receive a uniform allowance of \$600 per year. Employees may purchase uniforms from the store of their choice; provided, however, they follow the policies issued by the Employer from time to time. Notwithstanding the language above, nothing herein prevents the Employer from establishing a uniform voucher system, a commissary, etc., and requiring employees to obtain their uniforms from a required vendor and reimbursing employees only for the cost of the uniform.

Section 4.13 Deferred Compensation

Effective January 1, 2023, the Employer will continue to make contributions, on a dollar-for-dollar basis, under a 401(a) Plan (or any similar successor plan agreed to by the parties) up to the maximum of \$500 per year, based on amounts deferred by each employee in 2023 to that employee's 457 Plan. Such contributory obligation shall increase as set forth below:

Effective January 1, 2024, the Employer will contribute \$1.50 for each dollar contributed by each employee under a 401(a) Plan (or any similar successor plan agreed to by the Union) up to a maximum of \$750 per year based on amounts deferred by each employee to the employee's 457 plan.

Effective January 1, 2027, the Employer will contribute \$1.75 for each dollar contributed by each employee under a 401(a) Plan (or any similar successor plan agreed to by the Union) up to a maximum of \$875 per year based on amounts deferred by each employee to the employee's 457 plan.

Section 4.14 COVID-19 Pandemic Pay

In recognition of employees' service during the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, all employees who were on the payroll, on approved leave, on layoff with recall rights, at any time between July 1, 2022, and December 31, 2023, and specifically including former employees who retired or were otherwise separated from service on or after July 1, 2022, shall receive (1) a one-time, lump sum bonus of \$3,000.00 on either January 1, 2025 of 30 days after ratification of this Agreement, whichever date is later.

Notwithstanding the language above, if an employee is otherwise eligible to receive this one-time lump sum bonus, but was eligible for and received a pandemic pay bonus because said employee was represented by another bargaining unit, that employee will not receive the one-time lump sum bonus as described above.

4.15 Payment of Wages

Effective on the first day of the fourth (4th) month after the date of ratification, the payment of wages provided herein shall be due and payable on the seventh (7th) and twenty-second (22nd) day of each month.

Within ninety (90) calendar days of ratification of this Agreement, employees shall enroll in direct deposit and register to receive their notification of pay deposit advice electronically through the Employer's program for that purpose (currently known as "GreenSlips") if they have not done so already. Employees will receive their notification of pay and deposit advice electronically through GreenSlips the first pay period after registering for GreenSlips.

ARTICLE V ABSENCE FROM WORK

Section 5.1 Holidays

(a) An employee is eligible for the following holidays:

1.	New Year's Day	7.	<u>Juneteenth</u>
2.	Dr. Martin Luther King's Birthday	8.	Independence Day
3.	Lincoln's Birthday	9.	Labor Day
4.	Washington's Birthday	10.	Columbus Day
5.	Casimir Pulaski Day	11.	Veteran's Day
6.	Memorial Day	12.	Thanksgiving Day
		13.	Christmas Day

In addition to the foregoing twelve (12) thirteen (13) paid holidays, employees shall receive one (1) personal day, which shall be granted in accordance with the current practices of the Employer.

- (b) In order to qualify, an employee should otherwise have been scheduled to work on such day if it had not been observed as a holiday, or if she/he were not on vacation at that time. Any paid holiday in the pay period shall be counted as a regular working day. If an employee is absent without pay on the last working day preceding or the first working day following such holiday, the holiday shall be considered as an additional day absent without pay.
- (c) When any of the above listed holidays falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the closest workday, Friday or Monday, will be recognized as the holiday.
- (d) When an employee who is authorized to work and does work one of the recognized holidays, all hours worked on said holiday shall be compensated for in the form of compensatory time or cash, at the employee's election, at one and one-half times the regular hourly rate of pay, on the basis of completed fifteen (15) minute segments. Notice of the employee's election shall be made no later than the first regular workday following the holiday on which the employee performed said work.

(e) Failure to Report to Work on a Scheduled Holiday

If an employee is scheduled to work on a Holiday and fails to report for work, the employee shall forfeit his/her right to pay for that paid scheduled holiday. An employee may utilize any available time, in accordance with the applicable Employer policy.

Section 5.2 Vacations

(a) Employees shall be eligible for paid vacations as of January 1 of each year following the year in which they were employed. An employee will earn the following amounts of paid vacation, based on such employee's continuous service prior to July 1:

Length of Service	<u>Vacation</u>
Less than 4 years	13 working days
4 to 8 years	18 working days
9 years or more	23 working days

- (b) Vacation leave earned will be determined by dividing the number of months worked in the prior year by twelve (12) and then multiplying by the number of yearly vacation days based on service. Any fraction will be rounded off to the nearest whole number of days. Any month in which the employee worked for at least 50% of the time shall be credited for purposes of computing vacation leave.
- (c) On termination an employee shall be paid for her/his accrued and pro rata vacation, except where she/he was discharged for serious misconduct (i.e., violent acts,

criminal acts, drug and alcohol violations on the job, or gross insubordination.)

An employee who resigns in lieu of discharge is entitled to the amount of vacation pay in his/her bank at the time of resignation.

- (d) In the event of the death of an employee while in the employ of the Employer, her/his accrued vacation pay shall be paid to her/his spouse or legal representative. Payment to either shall relieve the Employer from any further liability.
- (e) By January 31 of each calendar year, employees may submit their preferences for utilization of vacation time for the ensuing year to the Employer in writing. The request must set forth the beginning and ending date of the desired vacation. In establishing vacation schedules, the Employer shall consider both the employee's preference and the operating needs of the Employer. Where the Employer is unable to grant vacation preferences for all employees within a position classification within a facility, but is able to grant some, the preferred vacation periods will be granted on the basis of total continuous service.
- (f) Employees who file their preference by January 31 shall be notified of the vacation schedules not later than April 1 of that vacation year.

Section 5.3 Forfeit of Vacation

All earned vacation leave not taken in the vacation year it is due shall be forfeited, unless the employee was denied vacation by the Employer, or the employee was unable to take vacation because the employee was on an approved leave of absence, including a duty disability leave of absence, during the vacation period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if an employee still has unused vacation time during the fourth quarter of the vacation year, the employee upon giving written notification to the Employer before December 15 of the vacation year, may carry over no more than three (3) five (5) such days into the next vacation year. Effective the first full calendar year following ratification of the Agreement by City Council, employees who have completed ten (10) or more years of continuous service may carry over no more than five (5) seven (7) such days into the next vacation year. All such vacation days deferred in this fashion must be scheduled upon mutual agreement of the Employer and employee and taken before June 30 of the vacation year into which they are carried over. Employees on duty disability shall retain any vacation leave earned prior to being placed on duty disability leave, together with all vacation time earned during the period of duty disability for the 12 months following the date on which the person became disabled, and shall be entitled to use such vacation time within 12 months following their return to work.

Section 5.4 Sick Leave

(a) Each employee may be allotted sick leave with pay for periods not exceeding

twelve (12) working days in the aggregate during each calendar year on account of sickness, or related cause of absence, which may be considered by the department head a sufficient and legitimate excuse for the employee's failure to be present and in attendance upon her duties. Each employee appointed after January 1 of the calendar year shall be allowed sick leave at the rate of one day for each month of employment through December 31 of that year. Sick leave may be used in accordance with the City of Chicago Personnel Rules, Rule XXVIII.

Sick leave credit shall accrue to a maximum of two hundred (200) work days at the rate of twelve (12) days per year less days of sick leave used. Sick leave not taken at the time of termination shall cease and end all rights for compensation. Sick leave accrued while working for another public agency shall not be transferable.

(b) Employees shall accrue sick time at the rate of one (1) day on the first day of the month for each month of employment. In the event an employee, or a member of the employee's immediate family, experiences a serious health condition within the meaning of the Family and Medical Leave Act, upon request of the employee, the Employer will make available to said employee up to the full amount of sick time the employee would have accrued for the remainder of that calendar year as if he/she were actively employed, in order to cover the absence resulting from the condition in question, subject to reimbursement. Should the employee's, or his/her immediate family member's serious health condition require the employee to be absent into the next calendar year, upon request of the employee, the Employer will make available to said employee up to the full amount of sick time the employee would have accrued for that calendar year as if he/she were actively employed, subject to reimbursement. Upon his/her return to work, the employee will begin to accrue sick time with the start of the next calendar year. The Employer reserves the right to require an employee to provide documentation of the illness in question. Immediate family or immediate family members are defined in the City of Chicago Personnel Rules, Rule XXVIII, Section 2.

Section 5.5 Jury Duty

An employee who serves on a jury or is subject to proper subpoena (except if the employee is party to non-work related litigation) shall be granted a leave of absence with pay during the term of such absence, provided that the employee deposits his/her jury duty pay with the City Comptroller for those days which he/she was scheduled to work for the Employer and receives pay or compensatory time for said work.

Section 5.6 Bereavement Pay

In the event of a death in an employee's immediate family or domestic partner, such employee shall be entitled to a leave of absence up to a maximum of three (3) consecutive days including the day of the funeral. Where death occurs and the funeral is

to be held out of Illinois and beyond the states contiguous thereto, the employee shall be entitled to a maximum of five consecutive days to attend the funeral. The five consecutive days shall include the day of the funeral. During such leave, an hourly employee shall receive his/her regular straight time pay for such time as he/she is required to be away from work during his/her regularly scheduled hours of work. Salaried employees shall receive the leave of absence without additional compensation.

The employee's immediate family shall be defined as: mother, father, husband, wife, brother or sister (including step or half), son or daughter (including step or adopted), father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, grandparents and grandchildren, court-appointed legal guardian, and a person for whom the employee is a court-appointed legal guardian. The employer may, at its option, require the employee to submit satisfactory proof of death and/or proof of the relationship of the deceased to the employee. Domestic partners are defined as two persons regardless of their gender, who have a close personal relationship, sharing the same regular and permanent residence for at least six months; are each eighteen years of age or older; not married to anyone; not related by blood closer than would bar marriage in the State of Illinois; and are each other's sole domestic partner, responsible for each other's common welfare and jointly sharing their financial responsibilities. To qualify as a "domestic partner" under this section, the employee must register the domestic partner's name with the City of Chicago.

Section 5.7 Military Leave

Any employee who is a member of a reserve force of the United States or of the State of Illinois, other than the National Guard, and who is ordered by the appropriate authorities to attend a training program or perform other duties under the supervision of the United States or the State of Illinois, shall be granted a paid leave of absence during the period of such activity, but not to exceed fourteen (14) calendar days in any calendar year, provided that employees shall, as a condition precedent to payment, deposit his/her military pay for all days compensated by the Employer with the City Comptroller.

Any employee who is a member of the National Guard of the United States or of the State of Illinois and who is ordered by the appropriate authorities to attend a training program or perform other duties under the supervision of the United States or the State of Illinois, shall be granted a paid leave of absence during the period of such activity, but not to exceed fifteen (15) calendar days in any calendar year, provided that employees shall, as a condition precedent to payment, deposit his/her military pay for all days compensated by the Employer with the City Comptroller. Any reservist called for active duty on or after September 11, 2001 shall be entitled to full salary and medical benefits, provided that paid

leave shall be conditioned upon payment of military pay to the Comptroller. The right to this additional paid leave shall automatically terminate upon termination of active duty.

Section 5.8 Family and Medical Leave

Employees who have been employed a minimum of twelve (12) months, and who have worked at least 1,250 hours in the preceding twelve (12) months, shall be entitled to up to twelve (12) weeks unpaid leave within a twelve (12) month period for any of the following reasons:

- (a) For the birth of the employee's child and to care for such child;
- (b) For the placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care;
- (c) To care for the employee's spouse, child or parent with a serious health condition; and
- (d) Due to a serious health condition affecting the employee.

Employees may, but are not required, to elect to use accumulated paid vacation and/or unused paid sick leave or other accrued time toward this leave, according to the City's policies.

All such leaves are subject to the provisions of the Family and Medical Leave Act and the regulations thereunder, as well as the policies and procedures of the Employer in effect as of the date of this Agreement.

Such leave is concurrent with, and not in addition to, the unpaid leave provided for above. Employees may elect to substitute any accumulated paid leave for any portion of unpaid FMLA leave, or may take such unpaid FMLA leave following any paid leave for which the employee may be eligible and elects to use.

During any leave taken pursuant to this provision, the employee's health care coverage shall be maintained as if the employee was working, and seniority shall accrue.

The Employer shall pay its portion of the employee's insurance (individual or family) for the time period the employee is on FMLA leave, and the employee shall pay his/her portion of the insurance during that time period.

Section 5.9 Medical Leave

Non-probationary employees shall be granted medical leaves of absence upon request. Said medical leaves of absence shall be granted for in increments of a minimum of one (1) week up to three (3) months, provided said leaves shall be renewable for like

three-month periods, for a total medical leave of absence up to one (1) year. The Employer may request satisfactory proof of medical leaves of absence. Employees on medical leaves of absence shall return to work promptly after their doctor releases them to return to work. An employee on a medical leave of absence shall be returned to work upon the expiration of his/her leave, provided the employee has complied with the Employer's procedure which shall be provided to the employee prior to the start of said leave. If an employee is granted an extension of his/her leave, he/she shall be returned to work upon the expiration of the leave's extension, provided the employee has complied with the Employer's procedures.

Seniority shall accumulate for employees on medical leaves of absence for only up to one (1) year. After one (1) year, an employee on a medical leave of absence shall retain, but not accumulate seniority.

Employees who return from a medical leave of absence within one (1) year shall be reinstated to:

- (a) their former position if it is vacant; if not:
- (b) a vacant position in the same classification; if none available:
- (c) bump the least senior employee in the same classification, provided the employee returning from the <u>Medical</u> Leave of Absence has more seniority than the least senior employee, who shall be subject to the lay off and recall provisions of Section 6.6.

Section 5.10 Personal Leave

Non-probationary employees may apply for leaves of absence without pay for personal reasons. The grant and duration of such leaves shall be within the discretion of the Employer. Seniority shall accumulate for employees on said leaves. Employees who return from said leaves shall be reinstated to their former job subject to the layoff, recall and break in service provisions of this Agreement.

Employees shall be granted personal leaves of absence without pay for a period of up to one (1) year for the purpose of providing necessary care, full-time supervision, custody or nonprofessional treatment for a member of the employee's immediate family or household under circumstances temporarily inconsistent with employee's uninterrupted performance of his/her normal job duties, if satisfactory proof of the need for and duration of such leave is provided to the Employer. Such leaves shall be granted under the same terms and conditions as set forth above.

Employees who return from a personal leave of absence within one (1) year shall be reinstated to:

- (a) their former position if it is vacant; if not:
- (b) a vacant position in the same classification; if none available:
- (c) bump the least senior employee in the same classification, provided the employee returning from the Leave of Absence has more seniority than the least senior employee, who shall be subject to the layoff and recall provisions of Section 6.6.

Section 5.11 Duty Disability

Any employee who has been granted Duty Disability benefits shall be granted a Leave of Absence. The Employer will mail the initial Duty Disability payment within ten (10) working days upon receipt of verified authorization from the approving authority. Contingent upon continued verified authorization, subsequent payment will be made twice a month. If Duty Disability is denied, and such denial is later reversed, the employee shall be paid up to the date the amount the employee was eligible to receive, less any other disability payments received by the employee, subject to the same terms and conditions identified in this paragraph. Employees who return from said leaves shall be reinstated to their former job classification, if there is a vacancy in said classification, or if a position in said classification is then occupied by an employee with lower seniority. If the employee's former job classification is not available because the employee would have been laid off, if the employee had not been on a Leave of Absence, the employee may exercise seniority rights in accordance with and subject to the layoff, recall and break-in-service provisions of this Agreement. An employee granted Duty Disability shall continue to receive full benefits for any period he/she is on said leave in accordance with current practice.

Section 5.12 Religious Day Accommodation

An employee whose religious beliefs require that he/she not work when scheduled on a religious holiday shall be granted said time off. The employee may use time earned or may take the day off without pay.

An employee requesting this accommodation shall notify the Department Head or designee in writing at least five (5) calendar days in advance of the religious holiday. If written notification occurs less than five (5) calendar days in advance of the religious holiday, said request shall be granted at the Employer's discretion based on operational needs. Such requests shall not be unreasonably denied.

Section 5.13 Paid Parental Leave

An employee wishing to take paid parental leave must apply and be eligible for Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leave. An employee is eligible for FMLA leave if they have been employed by the City for at least 12 months before taking the leave and has worked at least 1250 hours during the 12-month period immediately prior to the leave. Effective January 1, 2023, eligible employees may be granted the following paid parental leaves, in conjunction with and as part of an approved FMLA leave:

- Up to twelve (12) work weeks of paid parental leave for either the birth of the employee's biological child or children, (including the employee's biological children born using gestational surrogacy), or for the adoption or foster of a child or children by the employee. Any paid parental leave is to be taken within the first year following either the child or children's date of birth, or the initial date of placement in the employee's home in the case of adoption or foster care. Paid parental leave may only be taken once per birth or placement event and must be used before a biological child turns one (1) year old or prior to the one (1) year anniversary of initial placement in the case of adoption or foster care. Any unused paid parental leave will be forfeited at the end of such a rolling year period.
- Up to eight (8) work weeks of paid leave for employees who are acting as gestational surrogates for their own recovery for routine childbirth. If postpartum complications arise that require additional leave, the employee may receive a maximum of twelve (12) work weeks of paid leave, provided that sufficient medical certification is provided to the employee's department. Such paid leave may only be taken once per birth event and must be taken within one (1) year following the event. Any unused paid leave will be forfeited at the end of such a rolling year period.

Procedures for requesting and returning from paid parental leave, including complying with the leave process, are governed by the City's Paid Parental Leave Policy.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, paid parental leave shall be granted as part of an approved FMLA leave.

ARTICLE VI

SENIORITY

Section 6.1 Definition of Seniority of Continuous Service

The term "seniority" and "continuous service" shall mean the same thing they are defined and used in this Agreement. Seniority or continuous service means continuous paid employment from the employee's last date of hire by the City, without a break or interruption in such paid employment, and regardless of job classification or department.

An employee earns continuous service credit even though he or she is not paid for:

- (a) an absence where the employee is adjudged eligible for duty disability compensation;
- (b) an approved Family and Medical Leave of absence;
- (c) an approved medical leave of absence of one year or less; or
- (d) an approved personal leave of absence of one year or less.

In the event two (2) or more employees have the same seniority date, a lottery shall be conducted to break seniority ties.

Service requirements for advancement within the salary ranges of Appendix A shall have the implication of continuous service with the City of Chicago. For purposes of determining eligibility for longevity pay increases and in determining an employee's vacation benefits, seniority or continuous service shall mean service for the Employer regardless of job title or department.

Section 6.2 Probation/Career Service Status

New employees will be regarded as probationary employees for the first six (6) twelve (12) months of employment and will receive no seniority or continuous service credit during such probationary period. Any period of absence from work in excess of ten (10) days shall extend the probationary period for a period of time equal to the absence. Probationary employees continuing in the service of the employer beyond their twelve (12) month probationary period shall be career service employees and shall have their seniority made retroactive to the date of their original hiring. Probationary employees may be disciplined or discharged as exclusively determined by the Employer and such Employer action shall not be subject to the grievance procedure, provided that, (1) after the first six (6) months of the probationary period, if the Employer intends to impose a disciplinary suspension on the probationary employee where the suspension will result in a loss of pay, prior to imposing

the suspension, except in an emergency or where the employee is unavailable, the Employer shall notify the employee and the Union, and upon request from the Union, will schedule a meeting with the Union and the employee to discuss and allow the employee to respond to the accusations and/or (2) if the Employer, within its discretion, rehires a former employee who did not complete his/her probationary period within one (1) year from the employee's termination, and said former employee had served ninety (90) days or more of his/her probationary period, all time previously served in the probationary period shall be counted for purposes for determining when the said employee completes his/her probationary period. A probationary employee who has served ninety (90) days or more of his/her probationary period and who is laid off shall be given preference over other applicants for employment in the same job title in the department from which he/she was laid off, so long as he/she does not refuse an offer of employment, and does not suffer a break in service under Section 6.4 of this Agreement.

Probationary employees shall not be eligible for dental or vision insurance but shall receive all other benefits under this Agreement. Probationary employees shall be compensated at the same rate as career service employees.

This Section 6.2 shall not apply to any new employee who, at the time of his/her hire as a PHN III or PHN IV, was already employed in a City job classification in which he/she held Career Service status.

Section 6.3 Interruption in Service

Employees who work a minimum of eighty (80) hours per month shall be credited with Continuous Service for time worked. Continuous Service credit will not be earned for absences without leave, absences due to suspension, or for any other unpaid leave or other interruption in service not specifically referenced in Section 6.1 above.

Section 6.4 Break in Service

Seniority or Continuous Service of an employee is broken, the employment relationship is terminated, and the employee shall have no right to be rehired, notwithstanding the provisions of any ordinance or rule to the contrary, if the employee:

- (a) quits or resigns;
- (b) is discharged for cause;
- (c) retires:
- (d) is absent for five (5) consecutive work days without notifying the employee's authorized Employer representative unless circumstances preclude the employee, or someone on the employee's behalf, from giving such notice;

- (e) fails to return to work at the expiration of an authorized Leave of Absence, unless there are extenuating circumstances which prohibit the employee from returning to work on the expiration of the leave;
- (f) does not actively work for the Employer for twelve (12) months for any reason except military service, approved Union or medical leave of absence, or duty disability leave;
- (g) is on layoff for more than twelve (12) consecutive months where the employee has less than five (5) years of service at the time the layoff began;
- (h) is on layoff for more than two (2) years if the employee has five (5) years of service or more at the time the layoff began.

Section 6.5 Filling Of Permanent Vacancies

- (a) The Employer shall determine if there is a permanent vacancy to be filled prior to posting of that vacancy.
- (b) Employees within a department who desire a change in shift, day(s) off or location of their job assignment shall request such change in writing on the Employer's form at any time for the remainder of the calendar year. A list of all transfer requests on file for employees will be sent to the Union monthly.
- (c) When filling a vacancy, the Employer shall select the most senior employee in the job classification in the Department who has such a request on file prior to any notice of posting being sent to the Union, provided the employee has the present ability to perform the required work without further training after a reasonable amount of orientation. The Employer shall give the Union a list of newly transferred employees by Department once a month. Any employee transferred may not seek another transfer for 6 months.
- (d) When filling a vacancy and there are no said employees who have requests on file prior to any notice of posting being sent to the Union, the Employer shall select the employee in the job classification in the Department from the recall or reinstatement list, if any, in accordance with the recall procedures in this Agreement.
 - (e) When filling a PHN IV vacancy and there are no said employees who have

requests on file prior to any notice of posting being sent to the Union, and there are no eligible employees on said recall or reinstatement lists, the Employer shall post the job for bidding.

- (f) All permanent PHN IV vacancies covered by this Agreement not filled as provided above shall be posted on a designated bulletin board at each work-site and at other appropriate locations as designated by the Employer. The permanent vacancy shall be posted for fourteen (14) calendar days. There shall be written notification to the Union of the posting of said vacancies at least one day prior to it being posted. The posting shall contain at least the following: job title, qualifications, hours, work location(s), pay grade and person to whom the job bid should be submitted. The posting shall also include any additional qualifications and duties required by the Employer for the position(s) posted.
- (g) Any PHN III may apply for any PHN IV position covered by this Agreement by submitting a bid application during the posting period. An employee shall not be allowed to bid on his/her own classification.
- (h) All bidders for permanent vacancies shall meet the minimum qualifications for the job in order to be considered for selection by the Employer. Qualified employees shall be given an equal opportunity with other applicants to bid on jobs which are determined to be permanently vacant by the Employer. If the Employer determines that two or more applicants are equally qualified to perform the work required, the Employer shall give preference to employee applicants over non-employee applicants.

If selecting between employee applicants the Employer determines to be equally qualified to perform the work required, the Employer shall select the most senior of those employee applicants. The Employer shall determine whether employee applicants are "equally qualified" based upon relevant evidence of performance, experience, training, proven ability and similar criteria related to the vacancy.

Bidders who are not selected shall be so notified by the Department Head. A copy of the bid list with seniority dates and the name of the successful bidder identified, shall be sent to the Union. A successful bidder may not bid for another Employer determined permanent vacancy for six (6) months.

During the posting, bidding and selection process, the Employer may temporarily fill the vacancy.

(i) The successful bidder for any jobs under this Section shall have an evaluation period, not to exceed sixty (60) days, to demonstrate that he or she can perform the job. If the Employer has just cause based upon the employee's job performance at any time during that period that the successful bidder cannot perform the job, or if the

successful bidder desires to return to his/her former job, then the successful bidder shall be returned to the job he/she held just prior to the awarding of the bid, displacing, if necessary, any employee who has been placed into said job.

Should the successful bidder be returned to the former job the successful bidder held just prior to being awarded the bid, the Employer is not required to repost the bid for the vacant position if the Employer decides to fill said position, but may select the next qualified individual on the prequalified candidate list.

If the employer has filled a vacant position in a Department, and if within one (1) calendar year of the position being filled, a vacancy occurs for the same position is n the same Department, nothing herein requires the Employer to post the vacancy for bid. Instead, the Employer may select the next candidate on the prequalified candidates list to fill the vacant position. The prequalified candidates list will remain active for one (1) year from the date the original vacant position was filled.

Section 6.6 Layoff and Recall

- (a) The Employer shall notify the Union and the affected employees in writing at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance of any layoff under this subsection, except when layoffs occur as a result of grant funds being reduced or eliminated. Where layoffs occur as a result of grant funds being reduced or eliminated and the Employer is unable to give at least thirty (30) calendar days notice, the Employer shall give the Union and the affected employees at least fourteen (14) calendar days notice of any layoff.
 - (b) All layoffs shall be by job classification within the Department.
- (c) Non-Career Service employees within the affected job classification shall be terminated prior to any Career Service employees in that job classification being laid off.
- (d) Where ability, skill and efficiency are equal, employees shall be laid off in order of their seniority, provided that the Employer may retain employees with special knowledge or skills.
- (e) An employee subject to layoff shall have first priority to fill a job in an equal or lower-graded bargaining unit classification, in the Department, which the Employer has deemed vacant, in lieu of layoff, provided the said employee has the then present ability to perform the required work without further training after a reasonable period of orientation. Said offers shall be by seniority. If the employee accepts a vacant job, the

Employer will afford the employee an evaluation period of up to ninety (90) days to demonstrate that he/she can perform the job. If the Employer, based on the employee's job performance at any time during that period, has just cause to believe that the employee cannot perform the job, the Union shall be notified and the employee shall be placed on the layoff list and shall have no further rights to bump of fill other vacancies prior to being laid off. The Employer shall notify the Union and the employee in advance of returning the employee to layoff if it appears to the Employer that the employee cannot perform the job. The Employer shall provide the Union with a list of the department vacancies, including the hours of work and location, if known, of available positions, prior to any movement of employees. If an employee subject to layoff is unable to fill a job in an equal or lower-graded bargaining unit classification under this subsection, the employee subject to layoff may displace (bump) the least senior employee, if any, in the most recent lower bargaining unit job title the employee to be laid off held in the Department, provided the employee bumping has the then present ability to perform the job without further training after a reasonable period of orientation, and provided further that the employee bumping has greater seniority than the employee being displaced. The Employer will afford the employee who is bumping an evaluation period of up to ninety (90) days to demonstrate that he/she can perform the job. If the Employer, based on the employee's job performance at any time during that period, has just cause to believe that the employee cannot perform the job, the Union shall be notified and the employee shall be placed on the layoff list and shall have no further rights to bump of fill other vacancies prior to being laid off. The Employer shall notify the Union and the employee in advance of returning the employee to layoff if it appears to the Employer that the employee cannot perform the job.

- (f) Laid off employees shall be placed on a layoff list, and shall retain and accumulate seniority and continuous service credit while on layoff, subject to the break-inservice provisions of this Agreement.
- (g) Employees shall be recalled in the reverse order of layoff, provided the employee has the then present ability to perform the required work without further training after a reasonable period of orientation. The Employer will afford the recalled employee an evaluation period of up to ninety (90) days to demonstrate that he/she can perform the job. If the Employer, based on the employee's job performance at any time during that period, has just cause to believe that the employee cannot perform the job, the Union shall be notified and the employee shall be returned to the layoff list subject to the break-in-service provisions of this Agreement. If such an employee is returned to the layoff list, the time that said employee worked during the evaluation period will not be counted

when calculating how much time the employee has been on layoff for purposes of 6.4(g) and 6.4(h).

Section 6.7 Balancing the Workforce

Prior to taking any action pursuant to this Section, the Employer will notify the Union of its intention to balance the workforce and, upon request, agrees to confer with the Union. The Employer shall provide fourteen (14) days advance notice to the Union. Should the Union request to confer with the Employer, said conference shall take place between the date the Employer provides the Union with advanced notice and the date the balancing of the workforce is scheduled to be implemented. If the conference does not take place during said time frame because the Union has not made itself available to meet at reasonable times during that time frame, the Employer may proceed to balance the work force as set forth below.

The Employer's movement of employees from one location, shift or day off schedule to another, which would otherwise be considered the filling of a permanent vacancy, shall not be deemed a permanent vacancy if there is not a net increase in the number of employees in the affected classification(s) in the affected locations, shifts or day off schedule.

If the Employer intends to reduce the number of employees in a job classification at a location, and reassign them to another location, the Employer shall seek volunteers among the employees in the affected job classification, provided that the volunteers have the then present ability to perform the work required without further training. Such employees shall also be permitted to volunteer for positions in the job classification(s) at other locations that the Employer has declared vacant, provided that the volunteers have the then present ability to perform the work required without further training.

If there are more volunteers than there are assignments, such reassignments shall be made on the basis of seniority. If there are insufficient volunteers available, the Employer shall reassign employees using reverse seniority, provided that the employees have the then present ability to perform the required work.

An employee being reassigned under this provision may file a transfer request (under the filling of vacancy article) to return to his/her original location. Said request must be made within sixty (60) days of reassignment, shall be valid for a period of eighteen (18) months after date of reassignment, and shall have preference over all other transfer requests for the original location.

Section 6.8 Detailing

Detailing is the temporary transfer of an employee to a work assignment within her/his job classification geographically removed from the employee's normal work site.

Employee(s) shall normally not be detailed for more than thirty (30) days, unless the Employer gives notice to the Union of its need to do so and confers with the Union upon request. In any event, no such assignment may extend beyond ninety (90) days without the agreement of the parties.

The Employer shall notify the employees of the requirements for a detailing assignment and shall seek volunteers among the employees who are qualified to perform the special assignment. If there are more volunteers than needed, selection shall be made on the basis of seniority commencing with the most senior. If there are insufficient volunteers, assignments shall be made from among the employees within the organizational unit where the detailing is necessary, commencing with the least senior employee with the present ability to perform the work. The Employer shall rotate such assignments equitably among the available employees.

In the event of an emergency any limitations of this Section shall be waived for a maximum of fifteen (15) working days. Should any emergency require a waiver of this section beyond fifteen (15) working days, the City agrees to confer with the Union regarding such extension.

Section 6.9 Seniority Lists

The Employer shall provide the Union with a seniority list <u>every six (6) months</u> annually. Each month the Employer shall notify the Union of additions and deletions to that list.

Section 6.10 Reciprocity

Employees hired prior to July 9, 1985, who have rendered service to the County of Cook, the Chicago Park District, the Forest Preserve District, the Chicago Housing Authority, the Metropolitan Sanitary District of Greater Chicago, the State of Illinois, the Chicago Board of Education, City Colleges of Chicago, Community College District 508, Public Building Commission of Chicago, Chicago Urban Transportation District, the Chicago Transit Authority, and the Regional Transportation Authority shall have the right to have the period of such service credited and counted for the purpose of advancement within longevity salary schedules, provided the above interpretation of continuous service shall apply. Employees hired after July 9, 1985 who have rendered service to another employer as stated above shall not have the period of such service credited and counted for the purpose of advancement within longevity salary schedules.

ARTICLE VII

DISCIPLINE AND GRIEVANCE/ARBITRATION

Section 7.1 Discipline

- (a) Non-probationary, Career Service employees will be discharged or otherwise disciplined only for just cause.
- (b) All discipline of any probationary or other non-Career Service employee, as well as all discharges, shall be excluded from the terms of this Article VII. Discharges of Career Service employees shall be governed exclusively by the City of Chicago's Human Resources Board/Police Board Rules. For suspensions of Career Service employees of eleven (11) days or more, an election to arbitrate said suspension must be made at the time the appeal to the Human Resources Board or Police Board is required. Once the election to arbitrate is made, the employee forfeits further right to a Human Resources Board or Police Board hearing. The grievance procedure provisions herein and the Human Resources Board or Police Board appeals procedure are mutually exclusive, and no relief shall be available under both. Disciplinary cases which are converted from a discharge to a suspension as a result of decision of the Human Resources Board or Police Board do not thereafter become arbitrable as a result of said decision.
- (c) The Employer within its discretion may determine whether disciplinary action should be an oral warning, written reprimand, suspension or discharge, depending upon various factors, such as, but not limited to, the severity of the offense or the employee's prior record. Discipline of non-probationary, Career Service employees shall be for just cause, and, for such employees, principles of progressive discipline shall apply as set forth in the Personnel Rules of the City of Chicago. Such discipline shall be administered as soon as practical after the Employer has had a reasonable opportunity to fully investigate the matter. In cases of oral warning, the supervisor shall inform the employee that she/he is receiving an oral warning and the reasons therefore.

For discipline other than oral warnings, the employee's immediate supervisor shall meet with the employee and notify him/her of the accusations against the employee and give the employee an opportunity to answer said accusations. Specifically, the supervisor shall tell the employee the names of witnesses, if any, and make available copies of pertinent documents the employee or Union is legally entitled to receive.

If the employee requests the presence of a Union representative at a meeting, one will be provided, if readily available, within a reasonable time period who shall be given the opportunity, if the employee requests, to rebut the discipline and request further pertinent information.

The Employer will notify the union office in writing of the pre-disciplinary meeting at the time the Employer notifies the employee. The Employer shall not have to unreasonably defer or avoid its intended disciplinary action because of the unavailability of an employee representative, taking all of the circumstances into account. The Employer is not obligated to meet with the employee prior to taking disciplinary action where the employee is unavailable or in emergency situations. The Employer's failure to satisfy this Section 7.1(b) shall not in and of itself result in a reversal of the Employer's disciplinary action or cause the Employer to pay back pay to the employee.

In the event disciplinary action is taken, the employee and the Union shall be given, in writing, a statement of the reasons therefor. The employee shall initial a copy, noting receipt only, which shall be placed in the employee's file.

(d) Conduct of Disciplinary Investigations By the Inspector General's Office

- 1. Supplementing all rights and processes due employees covered by this Agreement who may be the subject of a disciplinary investigation by the Inspector General, the interview will be conducted in the following manner:
 - A. The interview of the employee shall be scheduled at a reasonable time, preferably while the employee is on duty, or if feasible, during day shift hours.
 - B. The interview, depending upon the allegation, will take place at the employee's location of assignment, normal department location or other appropriate location, but not at a police station.
 - C. Prior to an interview, the employee under investigation shall be informed of the person in charge of the investigation, the identity of the interviewer and all persons present during the interview. When a formal statement is being taken, all questions directed to the employee shall be asked by and through one interviewer at a time.
 - D. The length of the interview sessions will be reasonable, with reasonable interruptions permitted for personal necessities.

- E. At the beginning of the interview, the employee shall be informed of the nature of the matters to be discussed.
- F. An employee under investigation shall not be threatened with transfer, dismissal or disciplinary action, or promised a reward, as an inducement to provide information relating to the matter under investigation, or for exercising any rights contained in this Agreement provided, however, that this Section shall not prohibit or prevent an accurate reading of the employee's administrative rights, or the imposition of discipline in accordance therewith.
- G. An employee under investigation will be provided, without unreasonable delay, with a copy of any written statement the employee has made.
- H. (1) If the allegation under investigation indicates a recommendation for discipline is probable against the employee, said employee will be given the statutory administrative proceedings rights prior to the commencement of the interview. (2) If the allegation indicates that criminal prosecution may be probable against said employee, the provisions of this Section shall be inapplicable and said employee will be afforded his constitutional rights concerning self-incrimination prior to the commencement of the interview. An employee will not be read his/her administrative and Miranda rights during the same interview.
- I. At the request of the employee under investigation, an employee who may be subject to discipline shall have the right to be represented in the interview by a representative of the Union. The employee shall be told that he/she has the right to Union representation before commencement of the interview. The interrogation shall be suspended until representation can be obtained, provided the suspension is not for an unreasonable time and the Employer does not have the interview unduly delayed.
- J. The Employer shall not compel an employee under investigation to speak or testify before, or to be questioned by, any non-governmental agency relating to any matter or issue under investigation.

- K. The results of a polygraph examination shall not be used against an employee in any forum adverse to the employee's interests. The Employer will not require a polygraph examination if it is illegal to do so. If an employee is asked to take a polygraph examination, he/she will be advised in writing 24 hours prior to the administration of the examination. The results of any polygraph examination shall be known to the employee within one week.
- L. This section shall not apply to employee witnesses.
- M. The identity of an employee under investigation shall not be made available to the media during the course of an investigation until charges are filed by the Employer and the employee has the opportunity to respond thereto. If an employee is exonerated after the City initially informed the media of the charges against the employee, the City will make that fact available to the media where the employee requests it.
- N. In the event that disciplinary action is taken against an employee, any allegations of violations of this Section shall be heard in connection with, and in the same forum as, grievances which protest said disciplinary action.
- O. Any evidence or information including employee statements that is obtained in violation of the rights enumerated in this Section, shall be suppressed and shall not be used by the Employer for any disciplinary action against the employee, or in the case of promotions or transfers.
- 2. Should during the life of this Agreement the City Council enact an ordinance which transfers the investigative authority of the Inspector General to another City Department or agency, the provisions of this Section shall be deemed to be applicable to that Department or agency.

(e) Personnel Files

The Employer's personnel files and disciplinary history files, except for confidential documents, relating to any employee shall be open and available for inspection by the affected employee during regular business hours. Any material and/or matter not available for inspection shall not be used in any forum adverse to the employee's interest. Records of disciplinary action which are over two years after the date of the incident or the date upon which the violation was discovered, whichever is longer, shall not be used against the

employee; provided, however, that said record of discipline may continue to be used as a basis for further discipline beyond said two year period if (1) the matter is the subject of either civil or criminal court litigation prior to the expiration of the two-year period; or (2) the employee is charged with at least one additional, substantially similar offense at any time within said two year period.

Section 7.2 Grievance and Arbitration Procedures

- (a) Disciplinary actions, except as described in Section 7.1(b) above, any and all disputes and differences involving Department of Personnel Rules, or an agency administrative action, or an interpretation or application of a specific section in this Agreement between the Employer and the Union or any of the employees it represents shall be exclusively settled in accordance with the terms of this Section 7.2.
- (b) There shall be no interruption of the operation of the Employer. It is agreed that the time limitations set forth herein are of the essence and that no action or matter not in compliance therewith shall be considered the subject of a grievance unless said time limitations are extended by written agreement of both parties to this Agreement.
- (c) Before a formal grievance is initiated, the employee shall discuss the matter with her/his immediate supervisor. If the problem is not resolved in discussion, the following procedure shall be used to adjust the grievance:

STEP I

- A. The employee or the Union shall put the grievance or complaint in writing on the appropriate grievance form within ten (10) calendar days of having knowledge of the event which gives rise to the grievance. In the space provided, the employee or the Union will indicate what Section and part of the Agreement is in violation and the requested remedy, and submit the form to her/his immediate supervisor.
- B. The immediate supervisor will notify the employee in writing of her/his decision in the space provided on the original grievance form, Step I. This form will be returned to the employee and the Union within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the written complaint.

STEP II

A. If the grievance is not settled at Step I, the Union representative and/or the employee shall have the right to make an appeal in writing on the grievance form Step II to the Department Head's designee and/or Director of Nursing

within ten (10) calendar days after the date of the decision by the immediate supervisor. A meeting shall be held within five (5) working days thereafter. The name of the Department Head's designee shall be posted for employees in areas where employee notices are normally posted and submitted to the Union.

B. The Department Head's designee will notify the employee in writing with a copy to the Union of her/his decision on the grievance form Step II within seven (7) calendar days of the Step II meeting.

STEP III

- A. If the grievance is not settled in Step II, the Union or the employee may appeal in writing on the space provided on the grievance form Step III along with Steps I and II to the Department Head or designee within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the senior supervisor's decision. If the dispute involves nursing practice issues, the appeal, upon request, shall be heard by the Department Head or designee. Any Department Head designee at Step III will be different than the Department Head's designee at Step II.
- B. The Department Head or designee shall meet with the Union in an effort to resolve said grievance and reply in writing of her/his decision to the employee and the Union within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the Step III appeal.

STEP IV

- A. If the grievance is not settled in Step III, the Union or the Employer, but not an employee or group of employees, may submit the dispute to final and binding arbitration, only if it involves an interpretation or application of a specific section of this Agreement, by serving a written request on the other to arbitrate, setting forth the facts and specific relief requested, within thirty (30) calendar days after the answer is given at Step III of this procedure.
- B. Within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of the written notice of arbitration the parties shall meet or otherwise attempt to select an impartial arbitrator by mutual agreement. If after seven (7) calendar days the parties are unable to mutually agree upon selection of an arbitrator, the parties will contact the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service and request a panel of eight (8) arbitrators. No subsequent panel may be requested except with the mutual written agreement of the Employer and the Union. The Employer and the

Union will alternately strike names from the listing of arbitrators until the arbitrator is chosen. The Employer will strike first.

- C. The Arbitrator will advise the parties of his/her fees and expenses prior to selection and will be expected to charge such fees and expenses. The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be borne equally between the Union and the Employer. Each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses. The cost of a transcript shall be shared if the necessity of a transcript is mutually agreed upon between the parties.
- D. The Arbitrator shall select a date for arbitration within sixty (60) days of notice that a grievance is ready for arbitration and submit his/her decision within thirty (30) days following such hearing.
- E. The parties may agree to submit more than one (1) grievance to an Arbitrator.
- F. An arbitrable matter must involve the meaning and application or interpretation of a specific provision of this Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall be the sole source of any rights which either party may assert in arbitration. The Arbitrator shall have no power to amend, add to, subtract from, or change the terms of this Agreement, and shall be authorized only to interpret the existing provisions of this Agreement and apply them to the specific facts of the grievance or dispute. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be based wholly on the evidence and arguments presented to him/her by the parties in the presence of each other. No arbitration hearing shall be held unless both parties are present. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding on all parties to the dispute, including the employee or employees involved.
- (d) Any settlement at Step I, II or III shall be binding upon the Employer, the Union and the aggrieved employee(s).
- (e) Failure of the Employer to answer a grievance within the time limits herein shall permit the Union to refer the case to the succeeding step of the procedure.

- (f) The Union will be informed of and allowed to be in attendance at all grievance or disciplinary hearings.
- (g) If the grievance or arbitration affects more than one employee, the grievance or arbitration may be presented by a single selected employee representative of the group or class.
 - (h) Either the Employer or the Union may file a grievance at Step III.
- (i) Even though a grievance has been filed, employees are obligated to follow instructions or orders of supervisors of the Employer, subject to discipline, except where the instruction or order is so inherently dangerous to the employee that it could cause death or serious physical harm. The Employer agrees that by following instructions or orders the employee does not waive the employee's right to process her/his grievance.
- (j) Upon written request, at any step of the grievance procedure, the Union shall be given specified written materials, policies or documents pertinent to the grievance under consideration to which the Union is legally entitled.

ARTICLE VIII

EDUCATION, TRAINING, AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Section 8.1 Tuition Reimbursement

Rules and procedures regarding tuition reimbursement shall be as described in Appendix E attached, which by reference is made part of this Agreement.

- (a) Employees shall be entitled to tuition reimbursement subject to the restrictions provided in the Tuition Reimbursement Policy identified as Appendix E in this Agreement.
- (b) The Employer will, upon request, notify the Union in writing of the names of employees who have been granted tuition reimbursement, the amount of the reimbursement, and the names of employees whose applications were denied.

This request should specifically identify the employee by name and by title code. No more than two (2) requests shall be made per calendar year.

Section 8.2 Continuing Education Outside the Department

Employees may receive up to 35 hours per year of paid time for continuing education related to public health (e.g., workshops, seminars, classes, etc.), as approved by the Commissioner. Continuing education for employees is not mandatory.

Section 8.3 Protocol

Requests for leave from work to attend in-service training or continuing education programs outside the Department must be submitted in accordance with applicable Department procedures, and are subject to final approval by the Commissioner or his/her designee.

Section 8.4 Preceptors

The Employer and the Union mutually recognize the value of preceptorship in the training of new bargaining unit employees. Where the City assigns an employee to precept a new employee, the appropriate City supervisor will discuss the terms of the preceptorship with the preceptor and the new employee, and the Department will utilize its current validation checklist, or some other similar informal written document. The preceptorship will be taken into consideration in any evaluation of the precepting employee's performance with respect to his/her caseload.

Section 8.5 Training

The Employer and Union are committed to the principle of training for employees in order to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Department of Health. The Employer has the right to require employees to attend training without the loss of pay, and the Employer may request proof of attendance. The Employer may change an employee's start time to coincide with the hours of the training.

Section 8.6 Advisory Training Committee

An Advisory Training Committee shall be established in the Department of Public Health composed of representatives of the Commissioner and at least one representative from Teamsters, Local 743. Teamsters, Local 743, will appoint its representative(s). This Committee will meet quarterly, unless the parties mutually agree to meet less or more frequently, and said meetings will take place during the working hours of employees on the Committee. Employees will be allowed to attend Advisory Training Committee meetings subject to prior supervisor approval and operational needs. The Committee may make recommendations to the Department of Public Health regarding public health, job-related, educational and/or training programs and development opportunities.

ARTICLE IX

DUES/FAIR SHARE FEE DEDUCTION

Section 9.1 Dues Deduction

Upon receipt of a written authorization in a form agreed upon by the Employer and the Union, the Employer shall deduct from the wages of the employees concerned the dues uniformly required and shall forward the full amount to the Union by the tenth (10th) day of the month following the month in which the deductions are made. Authorization for such deduction shall be irrevocable unless revoked by written notice to the Employer and the Union during the fifteen (15) day period prior to the expiration of this Agreement. The Employer will not similarly deduct the dues of any other organization as to employees covered by this Agreement.

Section 9.2 Fair Share

It is further agreed that thirty (30) days after the later of the execution of this Agreement or the employee's date of hire, the Employer shall deduct from the earnings of employees who are not members of the Union, a monthly amount as certified by the Union and shall remit such deductions to the Union at the same time that the dues check-off is remitted under terms and procedures as shall be agreed upon in negotiations between the Employer and the Union. It is understood that the amount of

deduction from said non-member bargaining unit employees will not exceed the regular monthly Union dues and represents the employee's fair share cost of the collective bargaining process, contract administration and pursuing matters affecting wages, hours and other conditions of employment.

Section 9.3 Right of Non-Association

Nothing in this Agreement shall be inconsistent with Section 6(g) of the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act in protecting the right of non-association of employees based upon the bona fide religious tenets or teachings of a Church or other religious body of which such employees are members.

Section 9.4 Condition of Employment

Each employee who on the effective date of this Agreement is a member of the Union, and each employee who becomes a member after that date, shall, as a condition of employment, maintain his/her membership in good standing in the Union during the term of this Agreement.

Any present employee who is not a member of the Union shall, as a condition of employment, be required to pay a fair share (not to exceed the amount of Union dues) of the cost of the collective bargaining process and contract administration. All employees hired on or after the effective date of this Agreement and who have not made application

for membership shall be required, thirty (30) days after the later of the execution of this Agreement or their hire date, to pay a fair share of the cost of the collective bargaining process and contract administration and pursuing matters affecting wages, hours and other conditions of employment.

Section 9.5 Indemnity

The Union shall indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits, or other forms of liability, including damages, attorney's fees (as outlined in the side letter) and court and other costs that shall arise out of any action taken or not taken by the Employer for the purpose of complying with this Article, or in reliance on any list, notice, certification or assignment furnished under any of such provisions.

ARTICLE X

UNION REPRESENTATION

Section 10.1 Union Representatives

The Union will advise the Employer in writing of the names of the business agents and stewards authorized to act on behalf of the Union.

Section 10.2 Investigation and Processing of Grievances

Union stewards and grievants will be permitted a reasonable amount of time without loss of pay during working hours to investigate and process grievances where this does not substantially interfere with the efficient operation of the department, provided that stewards shall observe the Employer's reasonable visitation rules for Union representatives. The employee shall ask his/her immediate supervisor for permission to handle grievances on work time, it being understood that the operation of the department takes precedence unless there is an emergency, but such permission shall not be unreasonably denied. Paid time off to investigate and process grievances under this Section does not include any time spent preparing for or presenting arbitration hearings after Step III of the grievance procedure has been completed.

Section 10.3 - Right of Access

Union business agents will be permitted to enter the Employer's facilities for purposes of handling grievances, observing conditions under which employees are working, attending meetings authorized by this Agreement, or for the administration of this Agreement, consistent with the Employer's reasonable visitation rules. The Union will not abuse this privilege, and all activities shall be conducted in a manner so as not to interfere with the Employer's normal operations.

The Employer agrees to make available conference or meeting rooms for meetings under this Article or authorized by this Agreement upon reasonable request of the Union,

subject to the Employer's reasonable rules relating to the Union's use of the Employer's premises.

Section 10.4 Contract Negotiations

The Employer agrees to meet with Union representatives, including Local Unit representatives, but not more than four (4) who are employees covered by this Agreement, at reasonable times to negotiate a subsequent collective bargaining agreement. The names of designated representatives shall be certified to the Employer in writing by the Union. Said designated representatives attending the meeting shall participate without loss of pay. During the course of contract negotiations with the City, said designated representatives may also be allowed a reasonable amount of time without loss of pay during working hours for the purpose of meeting, and/or traveling to meetings, to discuss issues relevant to their representation of the Union in said negotiations, provided that no one designated representative will be granted more than a total of four (4) hours of paid time under this Section in any calendar year, and provided further that the total paid time used by all designated representatives under this Section does not exceed twenty-eight (28) hours in any calendar year. Designated representatives will obtain the permission of their respective supervisors before using paid time under this Section, it being understood that the operational needs of the department take precedence.

Section 10.5 Labor-Management Meetings

For the purpose of maintaining communications between labor and management in order to cooperatively discuss and solve problems of mutual concern, labor-management meetings between the Union and designated representatives of the Department of Health will normally be held on a quarterly basis. Representatives of other interested City Departments may attend said meetings at their discretion. Fewer or more frequent meetings may be held by mutual agreement of the parties. Meetings shall be scheduled at a time, place and date mutually agreed upon with due regard for the efficient operation of the Employer's business.

The parties may discuss any subject of mutual concern, except for grievances and changes in this Agreement. Each party shall prepare and submit an agenda to the other one (1) week prior to the scheduled meeting. These meetings shall be attended by a reasonable number of representatives of each party, which number shall be mutually agreed to by the Union and the Employer. Any Union representative who is a City employee shall ask his/her immediate supervisor for permission to attend a labor-management meeting on work time, it being understood that the operations of the Department take precedence, but such permission shall not be unreasonably denied.

Section 10.6 Orientation

The Employer agrees to grant the Union a reasonable opportunity during the orientation of new employees to present the benefits of membership in the Union. The

Union may have up to one (1) hour prior to, or following, the Employer's normal orientation period.

ARTICLE XI

NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT

Section 11.1 No Strike

During the term of this Agreement neither the Union, its officers, or members shall instigate, call, encourage, sanction, recognize, condone, or participate in any strike (including, but not limited to sympathy strikes and strikes to protest Union or third party conduct), slowdown, stoppage of work, boycott, picketing, or willful interference with rendering of services by the Employer.

Section 11.2 Union Responsibility

The Union agrees that it will use its best efforts to prevent any acts forbidden in this Article and that in the event any such acts take place or are engaged in by any employee or group of employees, the Union further agrees it will use its best efforts to cause an immediate cessation thereof. If the Union immediately takes steps in good faith to end any strike, slowdown, stoppage, boycott, picketing or interference, the Employer agrees that it will not bring action against the Union to establish responsibility for such wildcat or unauthorized conduct.

Section 11.3 Discipline For Breach.

The Employer in its sole discretion may terminate the employment or otherwise discipline any employee or employees who engage in any act forbidden in this Article.

Section 11.4 No Lockout

The Employer agrees not to lock out the employees during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XII

SUBCONTRACTING

Section 12.1

The Employer will have employees perform bargaining unit work where practicable; however, the Employer reserves the right to contract out work for reasons of efficiency or economy.

Section 12.2

Prior to subcontracting bargaining unit work, the Employer shall give notice of such contemplated action to the Union at least 30 days prior to entering into a

subcontract, unless emergency or other circumstances preclude 30 days notice, in which case the Employer will give notice to the Union as soon as practicable after the need for the subcontracting is known. The notice shall be in writing and shall contain the name and address of the party who will perform the work, a description of the work to be performed, any contemplated impact on bargaining unit employees, and any other relevant data to enable the Union to discuss with the Employer alternatives to such action. Upon request, the Employer will meet with the Union within 3 days of such a request.

Section 12.3

If bargaining unit employees would be displaced by the proposed subcontracting, the Employer shall make available, on a seniority basis, equal-rated permanent bargaining unit jobs the Employer has declared to be vacant in the Department, or other Departments, in that order, provided the displaced employees have the then present ability to perform the required work without further training. However, the employee shall be provided with a reasonable amount of orientation to allow her or him to perform the work.

ARTICLE XIII

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 13.1 Bulletin Boards

The Employer or her/his designee in the department shall, upon the request of an employee of that department or agency, and subject to the availability of space, designate space on a bulletin board for the employee to post materials which do not relate to official City business. The employee shall not use such space for posting abusive, inflammatory or partisan political material. All materials which are posted by the employee must be signed and dated by such employee prior to posting, and bear the approval of the Department Head or his designee.

Section 13.2 Delegation

Employees shall not be required or directed to delegate nursing activities to other personnel inconsistent with recognized standards of professional practice and/or the Illinois Nursing Act and the Rules for its Administration.

Section 13.3 Performance Evaluations

As part of the evaluation process, the employee's supervisor shall discuss the evaluation with the employee and give him/her the reasons for such evaluation and an opportunity to clarify or rebut his/her evaluation. During the discussion each employee shall receive a legible copy of the performance appraisal, signed by the supervisor and the employee. The employee's signature will indicate only that he/she has seen the evaluation.

The evaluation form shall state that it is the employee's right to place a rebuttal in his/her file if the employee so chooses. Both the evaluation and the rebuttal shall be retained in the employee's personnel file.

Section 13.4 Prohibition Against Discrimination

- (a) The Employer agrees not to discriminate against any employee on the basis of race, sex, creed, religion, color, sexual <u>orientation preference</u>, marital (including parental) status, age, national origin, <u>ancestry, gender identity, disability, military service or discharge status or mental and/or physical handicap</u>, or Union activity.
- (b) Grievances by employees alleging violations of Section 13.4(a) shall be resolved through Step III of the Grievance Procedure of this Agreement, but shall not be subject to arbitration unless mutually agreed by the parties.

Section 13.5 Reasonable Accommodation

Whenever an employee (or the Union at the request of an employee) requests an accommodation under the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"), or such an accommodation is otherwise contemplated by the Employer, the Employer, the employee and/or the Union will meet to discuss the matter. If the Employer, the employee and the Union reach agreement, such agreement shall be binding on the Employer, the Union and all employees.

In the event a grievance is filed over any action or inaction by the Employer, and the Employer claims that such action or inaction was based on the Employer's obligations under the ADA, the arbitrator shall take the Employer's obligations under the ADA, the Union's obligations under the ADA, as well as the provisions of Section 13.4 (non-discrimination) of this Agreement when rendering his or her decision.

Neither party shall unreasonably withhold its consent to the reasonable accommodation of an employee.

It is the intent of the parties that reasonable accommodations adopted by the Employer conform to the requirements of the Agreement to the extent practicable. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement, any agreement or settlement hereunder or arbitration award and any decision of any agency or court of competent jurisdiction finding a violation of the ADA, such decision shall take precedence over the Agreement, and agreement or settlement hereunder or arbitration award.

Information obtained regarding the medical condition or history of an employee shall be treated in a confidential manner.

Section 13.6 Health and Safety

The Employer shall continue its efforts to provide for a safe working environment for its employees as is legally required by federal and state laws.

Section 13.7 Extension of Benefits

Any improvements in holidays, vacations, sick leave for salaried employees, automobile reimbursement, group health, vision care, dental, life and accident benefits, bereavement leave and jury duty leave granted to the majority of other employees of the Employer during the term of this Agreement shall also be granted to employees covered under this Agreement. For purposes of this section, a "majority of City unionized employees" excludes sworn employees of the Police Department, uniformed members/employees of the Fire Department, and employees in prevailing wage rate classifications.

Section 13.8 Protocol Committee

At least one bargaining unit employee will serve on each protocol committee involving nursing practice. The Union will encourage bargaining unit employees to volunteer to serve on a protocol committee.

ARTICLE XIV

DRUG AND ALCOHOL PROGRAM

Section 14.1 Policy Statement

The City of Chicago's essential mission is to provide services to its citizens in a safe and economic manner. The parties to this Agreement recognize that drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace has a deleterious effect on the health and safety of employees, as well as their morale and productivity, all of which creates an undue burden on the persons which the City and the employees covered by this Agreement serve.

The Employer and the Union maintain a strong commitment to protect people and property, and to provide a safe working environment. To this end, the Employer has also established its confidential Employee Assistance Program for employees with personal problems, including alcohol and substance abuse, and the parties to this Agreement urge employees who have such problems to utilize the Program's services.

To maintain a workplace, which provides a safe and healthy work environment for all employees, the following drug and alcohol program is also established.

Section 14.2 Definitions

(a) Alcohol: Ethyl alcohol

(b) Prohibited Items & Substances:

all illegal drugs and controlled substances, alcoholic beverages, and drug paraphernalia in the possession of, or being used by, an employee on the job or the premises of the Employer.

(c) Employer Premises:

all property, facilities, land, buildings, structures, automobiles, trucks and other vehicles owned, leased or used by the Employer as job sites or work locations and over which the Employer has authority as employer.

(d) Employee: all persons covered by this Agreement.

(e) Accident:

an event resulting in injury to a person requiring medical attention or causing significant damage to property to which an employee contributed as a direct or indirect cause.

(f) Reasonable Cause:

erratic or unusual behavior by an employee, including but not limited to noticeable imbalance, incoherence and disorientation, which would lead a person of ordinary sensibilities to conclude that the employee is under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol.

(g) Under the Influence:

any mental, emotional, sensory or physical impairment due to the use of drugs or alcohol.

(h) Test:

the taking and analysis of any body component sample, whether by blood, breath, urine, or in any other scientifically reliable manner, for the purpose of identifying, measuring or quantifying the presence or absence of drugs, alcohol or any metabolite thereof.

Section 14.3 Disciplinary Action

(a) All employees are expected to report to work in a physical condition that will enable them to perform their jobs in a safe manner. Further, employees shall not use,

possess, dispense or receive prohibited items or substances on or at the Employer's premises, nor shall they report to work under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol.

- (b) When, based upon the direct observation of two supervisors, the Employer has reasonable cause to believe that an employee on duty is under the influence of a prohibited substance, the Employer shall have the right to subject that employee to a drug and alcohol test. At the Employer's discretion, the employee may be placed on administrative leave with pay until test results are available. All documentation concerning the decision to perform a drug or alcohol test and the test results themselves shall be kept confidential pursuant to the terms of Section 4(j) herein. If the test results prove negative, the employee shall be reinstated. In all other cases, the Employer will terminate all employees who:
 - (i) test positive for drug and/or alcohol use;
 - (ii) refuse to cooperate with testing procedures;
 - (iii) are found to be under the influence of drugs or alcohol while on duty and on the Employer's premises;
 - (iv) are found in possession of alcohol, drugs or drug paraphernalia, or are found selling or distributing drugs or drug paraphernalia, on the Employer's premises.
- (c) All adverse employment action taken against an employee under this program shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedures of this Agreement.

Section 14.4 Drug and Alcohol Testing

- (a) The Employer may require drug and/or alcohol testing under the following conditions:
 - (i) a test may be administered in the event that two supervisors have reasonable cause to believe that an employee has reported to work under the influence of or is at work under the influence of, drugs or alcohol;

- (ii) a test may be required if an employee is involved in a workplace accident or fighting;
- (iii) a test may be required as part of a follow-up to counseling or rehabilitation for substance abuse for up to a one year period following the end of an in-patient rehabilitation program or one year and 30 days after the initial counseling session.
- (iv) as may be required by the terms of an agreement (such as, an intergovernmental agreement or the like) or grant program.
- (b) Employees to be tested will be required to sign a consent form and chain of custody form, assuring proper documentation and accuracy. If an employee refuses to sign a consent form authorizing the test, he or she will be subject to termination.
- (c) Drug and alcohol testing will be conducted by an independent laboratory accredited by the relevant agency of the United States Department of Health and Human Service ("DHHS"), and may consist of either blood or urine tests, or both. The Employer reserves the right to utilize a breathalyzer to test for the presence of alcohol, in lieu of other clinical testing.
- (d) Laboratory testing procedures will conform to the procedures specified in the DHHS guidelines for federal workplace drug testing programs, dated June 9, 1994 and as may be amended hereafter by DHHS.
- (e) Initial and confirmatory test results which meet or exceed the cutoff levels for drugs set forth in the DHHS guidelines (and as they may be amended) shall be regarded as "positive," and shall presumptively establish that the tested employee was under the influence of drugs.
- (f) Initial and confirmatory (or breathalyzer) test results which meet or exceed the level of blood alcohol established in the Illinois Motor Vehicle Act as legal intoxication shall presumptively establish that the tested employee was under the influence of alcohol.
 - (g) The cost of initial and confirmatory testing will be borne by the Employer.
- (h) Drug and alcohol test results shall be reported to the Commissioner of Human Resources or his designee in the manner to be prescribed by the Commissioner.

The applicant or incumbent shall be notified of the test results in writing. The Commissioner will inform the applicable department head of any employee who tests positive for alcohol or drugs, who in turn will initiate disciplinary proceedings under Section 14.3 above.

- (i) All urine or blood samples shall be taken in sufficient quantity as to allow for retesting. Any portion not used in the test will be preserved by scientifically reliable means for one (1) year following the test. Any employee whose test result is positive may elect, at his or her expense, to be retested by the same or other laboratory satisfactory to the Commissioner of Human Resources, provided that the Employer's testing laboratory shall arrange for transmitting said sample to the second laboratory. Positive results of said retesting shall be conclusive as to the presence of alcohol or drugs. The failure to take a sufficient sample, or to preserve such sample, to allow for retesting, shall not affect the removal from eligibility of an applicant or personnel action, including discharge, of any employee.
- (j) No laboratory report or test results shall appear in the incumbent's personnel file unless they are part of a personnel action under this program, but shall be placed in a special locked file maintained by the Commissioner of Human Resources, except as such disclosure may be required by this policy, law or ordinance. Such information shall be regarded as confidential and shall be used by the Employer in accordance with the provisions of this Article.

Section 14.5 Employee Assistance Program

The parties to this Agreement recognize that impairment due to drug and alcohol abuse can be an illness which should be treated. Accordingly, employees are encouraged to seek help for a drug or alcohol problem before it deteriorates into a disciplinary matter and may participate if they wish in the voluntary Employee Assistance Program.

ARTICLE XV COMPLETE AGREEMENT, WAIVER AND SEPARABILITY

Section 15.1 Complete Agreement

This Agreement represents the sole and complete Agreement between the parties.

Section 15.2 Waiver

The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this

Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties, after the exercise of that right and opportunity, are set forth in this Agreement. The parties expressly waive and relinquish the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated during the term of this Agreement, to bargain collectively with respect to any subject matter concerning wages, hours or conditions of employment referred to or covered in this Agreement, or discarded during the negotiations, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated this Agreement.

Section 15.3 Modifications

After this Agreement has been executed, no provision may be altered or modified during the term of the Agreement except by mutual consent in writing between the Employer and the Union, and only at a conference called for such purpose by the parties and ratified by their respective organizations. All such alterations or modifications shall be executed with the same formality as this Agreement.

Section 15.4 Separability

Should any provision of this Agreement be rendered or declared invalid by reason of any existing or subsequently enacted legislation, or by decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, only that portion of the Agreement shall become null and void, and the remainder shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.

ARTICLE XVI

TERM OF AGREEMENT

Section 16.1 Term of Agreement

This Agreement shall be effective from the date upon which it is ratified by the City Council of the City of Chicago, and shall remain in effect through 11:59 p.m. on June 30, 2022 2027, subject to the terms of Sections 16.2 and 16.3 of this Article. Thereafter, it shall automatically renew itself from year to year unless at least sixty (60) days and not more than ninety (90) days prior to the termination date or anniversary thereof, either party gives written notice to the other by Certified Mail, return receipt requested, of a desire to amend, add to, subtract from, or terminate this Agreement. In the event such notice of a desire to amend, add to, or subtract from the terms of this Agreement is given, the parties shall, within a reasonable time thereafter, enter into negotiations concerning the request.

Section 16.2 Health Plan Reopener

Each party reserves the right to reopen this Agreement in order to further negotiate the Health Plan set forth in Article IV for the following reasons:

- (a) Any change(s) in the applicable law(s), including but not limited to a universal, national or state health care program mandating significant changes in health insurance benefits that becomes law and is effective during the term of this Agreement;
- (b) The lack of achievement of health care cost containment as anticipated by the parties pursuant to the establishment and administration of the Labor-Management Cooperation Committee on health care ("LMCC"), as defined below:
 - The parties charge the LMCC with the responsibility of approving Plan changes that will result in significant cost containment or savings, as measured by a projected increase of costs for any individual plan of no more than 8% in Fiscal Year 2009 and each fiscal year thereafter when compared to health care costs in Fiscal Year 2008 and each previous fiscal year thereafter, respectively.
 - 2. Should the Plan changes approved by the LMCC fail to result in such cost containment or savings as stated in subsection (a) above, the LMCC shall make such adjustments to the Plan as are necessary, including but not limited to adjustments in deductibles, co-pays and co-insurance, to prevent the cost increase from exceeding 8% as measured in subsection (a) above.
 - 3. Should the plan changes approved by the LMCC fail to achieve cost containment or savings as stated in subsections (a) and (b) above by the end of the following fiscal year, either party may elect to reopen negotiations as set forth herein on the following specific topics:
 - Health Plan set forth in Article 9;
 - Structure of the LMCC:
 - Composition of the LMCC;
 - Funding of the LMCC;

provided, however, each party reserves the right to reopen this Agreement in order to negotiate the Health Plan set forth in Article IV no later than June 30, 2011.

If any one of the foregoing events or conditions occurs, either party to this Agreement has thirty (30) days to notify the other party of its intent to reopen this Agreement in order to negotiate the Health Plan set forth in Article IV. Should either party elect to reopen negotiations pursuant to this provision, it shall submit written notice to the other party. Thereafter, the parties have ninety (90) days within which to reach agreement on the Article. If the parties fail to reach agreement at the conclusion of that ninety (90) day period, each party reserves the right to reopen the entire Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto, by its duly authorized representatives, has executed this document on the date set forth below:

FOR THE CITY OF CHICAGO:	FOR THE UNION:
Date:	Delia Stette Date: 11 21 24
Ciclys Portu Adu	Maushing Skunion Rep
Dura 11. 2524	Date: 11-19-2024

APPENDIX A SALARY SCHEDULES

BARGAINING UNIT CLASSIFICATION GRADES SALARY SCHEDULE SZ

JOB CLASSIFICATION	CLASS GRADE
Public Health Nurse III	6
(effective through 12/31/2024)	
Public Health Nurse IV	7
(effective through 12/31/2024)	
Supervising Public Health Nurse	7
(effective starting 1/1/2025)	

		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10
Grada		FIRST G MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 HONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP SHATE & SYRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 6 MATE & 7 YRS SERVICE	AFTER I TEAR AT STEP 7 RATE & 10 VRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 8 RATE & 15 YES SERVICE	APTER 1 YEAR AY STEP BRATE & 20 YRS SERVICE
6	Annual	\$74,688	\$78,396	\$82,392	\$97.396	\$91,740	\$96,336	\$1 01,172	\$10 6 ,272	\$111,624	\$115,994
	Monthly	\$6,224,00	\$5,533.00	పెట్కకల్ 5,00	57,283 00	\$7 645.00	\$8,028.00	\$8,431.00	\$8,856,00	\$8,302.00	\$9,742.00
7	Annua'	\$77,604	\$81 576	585 ,716	\$89,940	\$95,388	\$100,176	s \$185,204	\$110,544	\$116,054	\$121,960
	Monthly	\$6,467.90	\$6,798.00	\$7,143.00	\$7 495.00	\$7,949 00	\$8,348 00	\$8,767.00	3 \$9,212.0 0	\$9,672.0	\$10,165.00

NDTE. The subhobile assumes a 3.00% exclosion in 2022 in 2025, exclosion in 2022 in 2025, and 5.00% of the CPHU is bendered 3.00% and 5.00% depending upon the U.S. Cay Average CPHU it the CPHU is \$ 00% or more then the percentage increases and the 5.00% of the cPHU is bendered to the nearest tenth of one percent. The U.S. Cay Average Jame CPHU released in July of the precentage vice and the cut to determine the percentage increases in the 2025 and 2026. Based on the U.S. Cay Average CPHU in June 2023 the 2024 increase applied is 3.00%.

Date mentained by OBM Compensation

		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10
Grade		FIRST 6 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	MEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	AFTER I YEAR AT STEP 5 RATE & 5 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 6 RATE & 7 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 7 RATE & 10 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP BRATE & 13 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 1 RATE & 20 YRS SERVICE
6	Anneal	\$76,932	\$80,748	\$84,884	\$90 ,012	\$94,4 68	\$99,228	\$104,208	\$109,464	\$114,972	\$120,408
	Morthly	\$6,411. 00	\$6,729,00	\$7,072.00	\$7,501.00	\$7.874 QO	\$8,259 ,00	\$8, 584. 00	\$9,122.00	\$9,581 0 0	\$10,034.00
7	Annual	\$79,932	\$84,024	\$88,284	\$92,640	\$98,244	S103 176	; \$108,36i	g \$113,856	s \$119,54-	\$125,64D
	Monthly	\$6,681.00	\$7,002 00	\$7,357.00	\$7,720 00	\$8,187.00) \$8,598 O	o \$9,030.0	0 \$9,4 88 0k	g \$9, 962. 0	\$10,470.00

NOTE. This solve all assumes a 3 cm's increase in 2023.

In cash of the State years 2024, 2025 and 2020, the percentage processes of the CPI-U is between 3 00% and 5 00%, depending upon the U.S. City Avarage CPI-U if this CPI-U is 5.00% or more own the processes of the control of the State years 2024, 2025 and 2020, the percentage normal second is the CPI-U increased in the CPI-U increas

Date mayneshed by OBM Compensation

		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10
Grade		FIRST & MONTHS	MEXT 6 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP STRATE & SYRS SERVICE	AFTER I YEAR AT STEP 8 RATE 6 8 YRS BERVICE	AFTER 1 YEARAT STEP 7 RATE 8 9 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 8 RATE 8 14 YRS SERVICE	AFTER I YEAR AT STEP 9 MATE & 19 YRS SERVICE
6	Annual	\$79,236	\$83,172	\$87,408	\$92,712	\$97,320	\$102,204	\$107,34 0	\$112,752	\$118,416	\$124,020
	Monthly	\$6 ,603,00	\$6,931 00	\$7,284.00	\$7, 726 ,00	\$8,110.00	\$8,517.00	\$8,945.00	\$9,3 96 .00	\$9,868,00	\$10,335.00
7	Annual	582 332	\$86,544	890, 936	\$95,424	\$101,196	\$106,272	s \$111,512	\$117,276	a 9123,132	<u>\$</u> \$129,408
	Monthly	\$5,861.00	\$7,212.00	\$7,578.00	\$7,952.00	\$8,433.00	s8,856 QQ	o จ ู9 <u>.</u> 301 ย	o \$9,773.0i	\$10,261.0	910,764.80

NOTE: The schedule assumes a 1,00% interpase in 2024
In each of the three years 2024 2025 and 2024 are personage encrease values between 1,00% and 5,00% of the CPLU is 3,00% or more than the personage increase and a 5,00% if the CPLU is 3,00% or more than the personage increase and a 5,00% of the CPLU in 3,00% or more than the personage increase and a 5,00% of the CPLU increase and a 5,00% or personage increases and a 5,00% or perso

Data maintained by OSM Compression

		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10
Qeede		FIRST 6 MONTHS	NEXT & MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 5 RATE & 5 YRS BERVICE	AFTER I YEAR AT STEP 8 RATE & 6 YRS SERVICE	AFTER I VEAR AT STEP 7 RATE & 9 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP & RATE & 14 YRE SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP SRATE & 19 YRS DERVICE
7	Annual	\$91,344	\$35,976	\$100.920	\$105,868	\$112,248	\$117,960	\$123,912	\$130,008	\$132,576	; \$143 _, 378
	yirinaM	\$7,612.00	\$7,968.00	\$8,410.00	\$8,624.00	\$9,354.00	3 39 830 0	0 \$10,326 0	510,834 0	\$ 11,048.0	0 \$11,948. 00

Date maintained by OBAI Compensation

NOTE This screenite assumes a 1,00% variable in 2005 applied to the contractably spread upon rate algorithms for the consistened schedule glade and other name of the drive years 2004, 2005 and 2005, the contractable revision services services assumes 1,00% variable revision to the CP-U is before years 2004, 2005 and 2005, the contractable revision services services services assumes a 1,00% variable revision to the contractable revision services services assume that the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision services assume that the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the contractable revision services. In the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision of the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% or more than the contractable revision to the CP-U is 6,00% o

		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP 8	STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11
Carredie		FIRST 5 MONTHS	NEXT 6 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 NIDNTHS	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 5 HATE & 5 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 6 RATE 4 & TRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 7 RATE & B YRG SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 8 RATE & 14 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 9 RATE 5 19 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 10 RATE & 21 YR6 SERVICE
7	Arnual	394.DEG	S98,456	31/13 944	\$109.058	\$115,620	\$121,500	\$127,532	\$133.90 8	\$136,548	\$147,672	\$152,472
	Monthly	\$7 940.00	\$6 238 00	58,662.00	\$9 089.00	\$9,635.00	\$10,125.60	\$10,636.00	\$11,159.00	\$11,379.00	\$12,306.0	0 \$12,796.00

NOTE: This schrolds assumes a 3.00% entraine in 2026. In each of the free years 2024, 2025 and 2026, the percentage in each of the free years 2024 2025 and 2026, the percentage in each of the free years 2024 2025 and 2026, the percentage in a percentage in each of the free years 2024 2025 and 2026, the percentage in each of the free years 2024 2025 and 2026, the percentage in each of the free years 2024 2025 and 2026, the percentage in each of the percentage in the

Date maintened by OBM Compensation

		STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	STEP B	STEP 9	STEP 10	STEP 11
Grafe		TRST 5 WORTHS	NEXT 5 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	NEXT 12 MONTHS	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 5 RATE & 5 VRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 6 RATE & 6 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 7 NATE & 9 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 8 RATE & 14 YRS SERVICE	AFTER 1 YEAR AT STEP 9 RATE & 19 YRS SERVICE	AFTER: YEAR AT STEP 10 RATE B 21 YRS SERVICE
	An su al	\$97,140	\$102 072	\$1D7, 32 8	\$112,508	\$119,376					\$152.472	÷ \$157,428
	Monthly	\$8,095.00	\$8,506,00	\$8,944.06	\$9,384.00	\$9,948 00	\$10,454.00	\$10,382.00	\$11,522.00	j 5′174⊋00	\$12,705 0	0 \$13,119.00

NOTE: This schedule assumes a 2.25% increase in 2027.

In each of the dress years 2024, 2025 and 2025, the percentage increases areas between 3.09% and 5.09% sepanding upon the U.S. City Avariage CPI-U is the CPI-U is between 3.09% and 5.09% and 5.09% and 5.09% are percentage increases and the security for an extraction of the percentage increases in the time representation of the percentage increases and the security for an extraction of the percentage increases and the security for an extraction of the percentage increases and the contraction of the percentage increases and the percentage inc

Data maintelned by OBM Competisition

APPENDIX B

LIFE INSURANCE

1. Optional Group Term Life Insurance

Effective upon ratification of this Agreement, or upon implementation of the plan, whichever is later, full-time or full-time equivalent Registered Nurses shall have the option to purchase additional Group Term Life Insurance under a new plan (Plan C). Present employees may opt for new Plan C or stay with old Plan B. New employees will have the new Plan C option only.

Plan B - Optional Group Term Life Insurance - Fixed Rate

Full-time or full-time equivalent Registered Nurses shall continue to have the option of purchasing additional insurance in \$1,000 units up to an amount equal to the employee's annual earnings rounded up to the next multiple of \$1,000. The monthly premium each employee pays will depend upon the amount of coverage selected. Premiums will be deducted from each paycheck.

Plan C - Optional Group Term Life Insurance - Graduated Rate

Full-time or full-time equivalent Registered Nurses shall have the option to purchase additional insurance in the amount of one, two, or three times the Nurse's salary. The monthly premium each employee pays will depend upon the amount of coverage selected and age. Premiums will be deducted from each paycheck.

2. Universal Life Insurance Program

Effective upon ratification of this Agreement, or upon implementation of the plan, whichever is later, full-time or full time equivalent Registered Nurses shall have the additional option of purchasing Universal Life Insurance for themselves, their spouses and any dependent children. The monthly premium each employee pays will depend upon the amount of coverage selected and age. Premiums may be deducted from each paycheck.

APPENDIX C

MEDICAL CARE BENEFITS

The following changes in the current City Health Care Plan (the "Plan") shall become effective on January 1, 2006, unless otherwise provided in this Appendix B. Unless changed by this proposal, all other aspects of the Plan shall remain in effect.

1. Plan Alternatives.

The Plan shall consist of three separate alternative coverages – a PPO plan ("PPO"); a PPO Plan with a Health Reimbursement Account ("PPO/HRA"); and two HMO plans ("HMO").

2. Plan Design.

(a) Network Plans:

(i) The deductibles, co-insurance and out-of-pocket maximums for the PPO Plan and the PPO/HRA Plan are set forth in Exhibit 1 hereto. For the PPO and PPO/HRA Plans, all covered services are subject to the annual deductible unless otherwise indicated. HMO benefits in Exhibit 1 are not subject to co-pays unless the co-pay is specified.

If the Employer decides that the PPO/HRA alternative lacks sufficient employee enrollment or is cost prohibitive, it may discontinue that alternative provided the Employer provides reasonable prior notice to the Union and an opportunity for those enrolled in the PPO/HRA to enroll in another plan. For this purpose, "reasonable notice" shall be defined as notification in writing of the employer's intent to discontinue the plan at least ninety (90) days prior to the proposed discontinuation where circumstances are within the city's control. In all other cases, the City will provide the maximum notice as is practicable under the circumstances. In addition, in the event that a new health care plan becomes available to the City during a Plan year, the Employer shall have the right to include that

new plan in the Plan alternatives upon reasonable notice to and discussion with the Union.

- (ii) The PPO/HRA Plan shall have an HRA account for each employee (to be administered by the relevant claim administrator or other third party administrator which the Employer shall determine, with prior notice to the Union), which account shall be credited with \$500.00 per individual, and \$1,000.00 per family per Plan year. Such amounts must be used for "qualified medical expenses" (as defined by the Employer), and can be carried over into the next Plan year if not used in the preceding Plan year.
- (iii) The PPO and PPO/HRA Plan will provide a "wellness" feature for members with a maximum annual benefit of \$600.00 per individual, which is not subject to the Plan deductible or co-insurance.
- (iv) Add an emergency room deductible of \$100.00 to the PPO and PPO/HRA Plan which amount shall be waived in the event the individual is admitted to the hospital. The Employer will interpret this provision consistently between its various bargaining units.
- (v) Add a disease management feature for active employees. The Employer will consider any input from the Union through the Labor Management Health Care Committee concerning the structure and implementation of this feature.
- (vi) Expand the Employer's 125 Plan effective January 1, 2006, to provide for a voluntary "flexible spending account" feature to allow for the contribution by participants of up to \$5,000 per Plan year to fund certain medical expenses (such as dental, vision, deductibles, co-payments, drug co-payments, and over-the-counter drugs) on a pre-tax basis, subject to the normal IRS rules regarding such plans.
- (vii) All newly hired employees shall be required to participate in the PPO Plan for the first 18 months of their employment. These employees shall be eligible to

participate in the first enrollment period following the 18 month anniversary of their dates of hire.

(b) HMO Plan:

(i) The HMO Plan shall have the minimum features set forth in Exhibit 1 hereto.

3. Health Care Contributions

- (a) The schedule for employee contributions to the Plan, as set forth in the 1999-2003 collective bargaining agreement(s), shall remain in effect until June 30, 2006.
- (b) A new employee contribution schedule, which shall become effective July 1, 2006, is set forth in Exhibit 2 hereto.

4. Prescription Drug Coverage

(a) Retail Drug Plan:

For the PPO Plan, PPO/HRA Plan, and HMO Plan, the following co-pays shall

apply -

- (i) generic tier 1 effective through life of the Agreement \$10.00.
- (ii) brand formulary tier 2 (brand with no generic substitute) effective July 1, 2006, \$30.00.
- (iii) brand with generic substitute \$10.00 generic co-pay plus the difference in cost between brand and generic drug.
- (iv) brand non-formulary tier 3 effective July 1, 2006, \$45.00.

(b) Mail Order Plan:

The PPO Plan, the PPO/HRA Plan, and HMO Plan shall have a mail order feature. The co-pays for the mail order plan for a 90 day supply are as follows ~

- (i) generic tier 1 effective through life of the Agreement \$20.00.
- (ii) brand formulary tier 2 (brand with no generic substitute) effective July 1, 2006, \$60.00.
- (iii) brand with generic substitute \$20.00 generic co-payment plus difference in cost between brand and generic drug.
- (iv) brand non-formulary tier 3 not available in mail order.

5. Dental and Vision Plans

(a) Preventative Dental Plan:

The Employer shall maintain the current PPO and HMO dental plans with changes to co-pays and deductibles according to the schedule attached as Exhibit 3 hereto.

(b) Vision Care Plan:

The current vision plan will be deleted. Vision benefits are to be included in the PPO and PPO/HRA Plans, and under the HMO's pursuant to the coverages available in those plans.

The Employer reserves the right to add to, change, modify or withdraw this proposal until final ratification of the entire agreement is concluded.

EXHIBIT 1

BENEFIT	PPO	PPO w/HRA	<u>HMO</u>
HRA (sin- gle/family)	N/A	\$500/\$1000	N/A
Co-Insurance (in/out of net- work)	90%/60%	90%/60%	N/A

HEALTH INSURANCE (SECTION 25.2)	Highlights of Health Insurance Plan, Continued							
BENEFIT	PPO	PPO w/HRA	<u>HMO</u>					
In-Network Deductible	\$300/person (eff. 1/1/06) \$350/person (eff. 1/1/07) max of 3 per family	\$1,000 person \$2,000 family	N/A					
Out-of-Network Deductible	\$1500/person (eff. 1/1/06) \$3000/family	\$3500 per person max of 3 per family	Status Que					
in-Network OPX	\$1500 per person \$3000 per family (includes deductible)	\$3000 per person max of three per family (deductible not included)	N/A					
Out-of-Network OPX	\$3500 per person \$7000 per family	\$11,500 per person \$34,000 per family	Status Quo					
ER Co-Payment	\$100, waived if admitted; not ap- plied toward deductible or OPX (eff. 1/1/06)	\$100, waived if admitted; not ap- plied toward deductible or OPX (eff. 1/1/06)	\$100, waived if admitted (eff. 1/1/06)					

HEALTH					
INSURANCE	Highlights of Health Insurance Plan, Continued				
(SECTION 25.2)					
Benefit	PPO	PPO w/HRA	HMO		
Office Visits	90%/60%	90%/60%	\$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06)		
			\$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07)		
Pediatric Immunization	Please Refer to Wellness Benefit	Please Refer to Wellness Benefit	Covered		
Pap Smear/Routine	Please Refer to Wellness Benefit	Please Refer to Wellness Benefit	\$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06)		
Gynecology			\$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07)		
Mammograms	Please Refer to	Please Refer to	\$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06)		
	Wellness Benefit	Wellness Benefit	\$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07)		
Outpatient	90%/60%	90%/50%	\$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06)		
Surgery			\$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07)		
In-Patient Hospital	90%/60%	90%/60%	\$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06)		
Services			\$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07)		
Outpatient Laboratory	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered		
Outpatient Radiology	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered		

HEALTH INSURANCE (SECTION 25.2)	Highlights of Health Insurance Plan, Continued			
BENEFIT	PPO	PPO w/HRA	нмо	
Physical, Speech & Occupational Therapy	90%/60% Restoration Only	90%/60% Restoration Only	60 Combined Visits per Calendar Year, Restoration only	
Cardiac Rehabilitation	90%/60% Cardiac Rehabilitation Services Only in Programs Approved by Claim Administrator (12 weeks or 36 scssions/year)	90%/60% Cardiac Rehabilitation Services Only in Programs Approved by Claim Administrator (12 weeks or 36 sessions/year)	Covered	
Pulmonary Rehabilitation	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered	
Respiratory Therapy	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered	
Restorative Services & Chiropractic Care	90%/60% Chiropractic Care Only 20 Per Year, Max 3 Modalities Per Visit	90%/60% Chiropractic Care Only 20 Per Year, Max 3 Modalities Per Visit	Covered, Requires Referral from Primary Care Physician	
Chemotherapy, Radiation and Dialysis	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered	
Outpatient Private Duty Nursing	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered, Requires HMO Approval	
Skilled Nursing Care	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered, Up to 120 Days per Calendar Year	
Hospice and Home Healthcare	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered	
DME & Prosthetics	90%/60%	90%/60%	Covered	

HEALTH INSURANCE (SECTION 25.2)	Highlights of	Health Insurance Pla	n, Continued		
BENEFIT	PPO PPO w/HRA HMO				
Outpatient Diabetic Education	90%/60% Two Visits Per Lifetime	90%/60% Two Visits Per Lifetime	Covered		
Routine Foot Care	Not Covered	Not Covered	Not Covered		
Fertility Treatment	90%/60%	90%/60%	Available Ac- cording to HMO Guidelines		

HEALTH				
INSURANCE	Highlights of Health Insurance Plan, Continued			
(SECTION 25.2)	200	НМО		
BENEFIT	PPO	PPO w/HRA	HMO	
Mental Iliness Care	Expenses per S Sessions Cover Is Not Certifier Expenses: \$50 Mental Health & Subs Expenses: Individual: \$3	\$100 Max Covered ession; Only 7 ed if Treatment d; Max Covered 00/year stance Abuse Max 7,500/year 50,000/lifetime	Co-Pays for Inpatient and Outpatient Services: \$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06) \$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07) Service Limitations: Inpatient: 30 Days/Year Outpatient: 30 Visits/Year	
Substance Abuse	Inpatient: 90%/60% Outpatient: 80% of \$100 Max Covered Expenses per Session; Only 7 Sessions Covered if Treatment Is Not Certified; Max Covered Expenses: \$5000/year Mental Health & Substance Abuse Max Expenses: Individual: \$37,500/year Individual: \$250,000/lifetime Family: \$500,000/lifetime		Co-Pays for Inpatient and Outpatient Services: \$15.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/06) \$20.00 Co-Pay (eff. 1/1/07) Service Limitations: Inpatient: 30 Days/Year Outpatient: 30 Visits/Year	
Hearing Exams and Aids	Hearing Screening: Covered in Wellness Benefit Hearing Aids: Not Covered	Hearing Screening: Covered in Wellness Benefit Hearing Aids: Not Covered	Screening: Covered in Full Hearing Aids: Nor Covered	
Lifetime Limits	Maximum Liferime	Limit is \$1.5 Million	No Limit	

Health Insurance (Section 25.2)	Highlights of	Health Insurance Pla	n, Continued
BENEFIT	PPO	PPO w/HRA	<u>HMO</u>
Wellness Benefit	\$600 per year (e lncludes: Subject to f development, the We cover, outside of deduexams, (2) immunizations, (3) (4) vision exams, lens contacts. The Wellne provide on-site health Wellness Benefit Is Nannual Deductible	llness Benefit will actibles: (1) routine) mammograms, and es, frames and ss Benefit will also assessments.	Available According to HMO Guidelines

EXHIBIT 2

EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION SCHEDULE (PER PAY PERIOD) COMPOSITE 2.0% OF OVERALL SALARY

	LEVEL OF COVERAGE			
ANNUAL SALARY	SINGLE	EMPLOYEE+1	FAMILY	
SALARY LEVEL	1 2921% OF PAYROLL/24	1.9854% OF PAYROLL/24	2.4765% OF PAYROLI/24	
	CONTRIBUTIO	ONS AT SELECTED SALAR (PER PAY PERIOD)	Y LEVELS	
	LEVEL OF COVERAGE			
ANNUAL SALARY	SINGLE	EMPLOYEE+1	FAMILY	
Under \$30,000	\$15.71	\$23.88	\$27.65	
\$30,001	\$16.15	\$24.82	\$30.96	
\$40,000	\$21.54	\$33.09	\$41.28	
\$50,000	\$26.92	\$41.36	\$51.59	
\$60,000	\$32.30	\$49.64	\$61.91	
\$70,000	\$37.69	\$57.91	\$72.23	
\$80,000	\$43.07	\$66 18	\$82.55	
\$90,000	\$48 45	\$74.45	\$92.87	
\$100,000	\$53.84	\$82.73	\$103.19	
REFERENCE	CURRENT EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION SCHEDULE			
07/01/2000		LEVEL OF COVERAGE		
ANNUAL SALARY	SINGLE	EMPLOYEE+1	FAMILY	
			T27 (V)	

\$12.50

1.0281% OF PAYROLL/24

\$38.50

000,06# GT 9U

\$30,001 TO \$89,999

\$90,000 AND OVER

\$19.00

1.579% OF PAYROLL/24

\$59.30

\$22.00

1.9705% OF

\$73.95

EXHIBIT 3

	DENTAL HMO PLAN (MUST USE PANEL DENTISTS)	DENTAL P	PO PLAN Out of Network
BENEFIT DESIGN Individual Deductible	\$0	\$100 Per Person, Per Year (eff. 1/1/06)	\$200 Per Person, Per Year (eff. 1/1/06)
Annual Maximum Benefit	Unlimited	\$1200 Pe	r Person
ORTHODONTIC PROCEDURES (BRACES)			
Braces - Under Age 25 Only	\$2300 Co-Payment	Not C	overed
PREVENTATIVE SERVICES		T	
Oral Exams (Twice a Year) Cleanings (Twice a Year) X-Rays (Twice a Year)	100% Covered in Full \$10 Co-Payment (eff. 1/1/06)	100% Covered in Full No Deductible \$10 Co-Payment	Plan Pays 80% of PPO Allowable Amount. Member Pays Balance of Billed Charges. No
Space Maintainers (Children under 12)		(eff. 1/1/06)	Deductible
BASIC PROCEDURES	Co-Payment (Member Pays)		
Ainalgam (Fillings) - One Surface Permanent	\$18.53 (1/1/06) \$20.20 (1/1/07)	PPO Allowable P Member Pays 40%	Plan Pays 50% of PPO Allowable Amount, Member Pays
Resin - One Surface Anterior Including Acid Etch	\$21.80 (1/1/06) \$23.76 (1/1/07)	After Deductible	Balance of Billed Charges After Deductible
Pin Retention (per rooth in addition to restoration)	\$28.34 (1/1/06) \$30.89 (1/1/07)		Plan Pays 50% o PP() Allowable
Rourine Extraction Single Tooth	\$21.80 (1/1/06) \$23.76 (1/1/07)		
Surgical Removal of Erupted Tooth	\$41.42 (1/1/06) \$45.15 (1/1/07)	Plan Pays 60% of PP() PPO Allowable, An Member Pays 40% Mem	
Surgical Removal of Tooth - Soft Tissue Impaction	\$53.41 (1/1/06) \$58.22 (1/1/07)		Amount Member Pays Balance of Billed
Surgical Removal of Tooth - Partial Bony Impaction	\$76.30 (1/1/06) \$83.17 (1/1/07)	After Deductible.	Charges After Deductible
Surgical Removal of Tooth - Complete Bony Impaction	\$76.30 (1/1/06) \$83.17 (1/1/07)		
Alveoloplasty - Without Extractions - Per Quadrant	\$88.29 (1/1/06) \$96.24 (1/1/07)	-	
Scaling and Root Planning - Per Quadrant with Local Anesthesia	\$41.42 (1/1/06) \$45.15 (1/1/07)		

	Dental HMO Plan		DENTAL PPO PLAN	
	(MUST USE PANEL	DENTISTS)	IN NETWORK	OUT OF NETWORK
Gingivectomy or Gingivoplasty - Per Quadrant	\$167.86 (1/1/06) \$182.97 (1/1/07			
Gingival Flap Procedure Including Root Planing - Per Quadrant		\$160.23 (1/1/06) \$174.65 (1/1/07)		
Osseous Surgery, Flap Entry and Closure - Per Quadrant	\$186.39 (1/ \$203.17(1/1			
Pulp Capping - Direct or Indirect	\$14.17 (1/1 \$15.45 (1/1			
Root Canal Therapy Anterior Bicuspid Molar	\$136.25 \$147.15 \$197.29	\$148.51 \$160.39 \$215.05	Plan Pays 60% of PPO Allowable. Member Pays 40% of PPO Allowable After Deductible.	Plan Pays 50% of PPO Allowable Amount. Member Pays Balance of Billed Charges After Deductible.
Apicoectomy (First Root)	\$126.44 (1/1/06) \$137.82 (1/1/07)			
Palliative Treatment	\$15.26 (1/ \$16.63 (1/			
Limited Occlusion Adjustment	\$23.98 (1/1/06) \$26.14 (1/1/07)			
MAJOR RESTORATIVE PROCEDURES				
Inlay - Metallic (One Surface)	\$252.88 (1/ \$275.64 (1/			
Onlay · Metallic (Three Surfaces)	\$342.26 (1/ \$373.06 (1/			
Core Buildup Including Pins	\$101.37 (1, \$110.49 (1,			
Temporary Crown - With Fractured Tooth (no Charge In Conjunction with Permanent Tooth)	\$68.67 (1/ \$74.85 (1/		Plan Pays 60% of PPO Allowable. Member Pays 40% of PPO Allowable	Plan Pays 50% of PPO Allowable Amount. Member Pays Balance of Billed
Crown - Porcelain/Ceramic Substrate	\$353.16 (1/1/06) \$384.94 (1/1/07		After Deductible.	Charges After Deductible.
Crown - Full Cast, Base Metal	\$361.88 (1 \$394 45 (1			
Denture · Complete Upper or Lower	\$444.72 (1/1/06) \$484.74 (1/1/07)			
Lower Denture Reline - Chait- side		\$135.16 (1/1/06) \$147.32 (1/1/07)		

APPENDIX E

CITY OF CHICAGO JUITION REIMBURSEMENT POLICY

OFNERAL PURPOSE. To increase the effectiveness of City services to the citizens of Chicago by encouraging the personal development of City employees through education and training, as well as to prepare employees for advancement

EFFECTIVE DATE: This policy is effective June 1 1981. Reimbursement for any course commencing on or after this date will be subject to this policy statement.

I. ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS.

A Applicants

- Applicants must be City employees currently on a City payroll. Board of Education and employees of other governmenta, agencies are NOT eligible for this program.
- Applicants must be full-time 'a minimum of 35 hrs. a week) or part-time (more than 17 % but less than 35 hrs. a week) employees. Emergency appointments, seasonal employees, Student-Astrainees and other student employees are NOT eligible.

Educational and Vocational/Technical Institutions

Applicant's school of enrollment must offer resident massroom instruction and be chartered as addressed within the Sovie of allocis or be an obtained of, rise of study which otherwise meets the requirements of this policy

- 2 Colleges and Universities must be accredited by the North Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools.
- 3 Technical/Vocational Institutions must be licensed by the State of Illinois or the Commission of the National Association of Trade and Technical Schools.

Courses offered at schools not so accredited may be approved by the Department of Huma. Resolutes. If such courses have been authorized by a licensing board and/or professional association.

Course of Study

Courses of study must be related to the employee's current work or probable future work with the City of Chicago.

(11) CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS ON REIMBURSEMENT:

- A Reimbursement is limited to two courses per retin.
- B. Reimbursement is for tuition only: rost for books, lab fees, late penalties, supplies and other special fees are NOT tembursable.

Resulbursement will be limited by the amount of financial aid the employee receives from other sources

- Tuition fees paid to any City College of Chicago will NOT be reimbursed.
- E Reimbutsement will be based on available funds.
- The application must be approved by the employee's Department Head or designated authority and by the Department of Human Resources

All applications must be submitted to the Department of Human Resources within thirty (30) days after the date classes begin

In the case of a work-related seminar, the application and accompanying letter of explanation must be approved by the Department of Human Resources prior to the date of the seminar.

The timely reimbursement of tuttion to the employee is dependent upon the earliest of applications, Release of Financial Aid Information forms, original grade reports and original receipts of payment by the Department of Human Resources. Carbon, photostatic, or Xerox copies will NOT be accepted.

Employees expecting late final grade(s) or for some other reason wishing to hold open their reimbursement request must promptly northly the Department of Human Resources. Unless this procedure is followed, reimbursement will not be paid.

APPLICATION PROCEDURE

- A Undergraduate Student
 - Complete two (3) copies of the Tutton Reimbursement Application form (PER-SO)
 - 2 Complete one (1) copy of the Release of Financial Aid Information form (PER-51)

Immediately send one (1) copy of the PER-SO form, without the departmental signatures, and the PER-SI form to the Department of Human Resources, Staff & Organization Development, City Rail - Room, 1100

- Send the second copy of the PER-SC form through your department to secure the Department Head's or designated representative's signature. When the second copy is received by the Department of Human Resources, the application will be reviewed and the applicant will be notified of its approval or disapproval
- B Graduate and Vocational/Technical Students
 - Complete steps AIA as above
 - Prepare a letter of explanation to the Commissioner of Human Resources, describing how your course of study is related to your present or future job duties. This letter is to be signed by the Department Head or designated representative and submitted with the second copy of the PER-SO to the Department of Human Resources. Only one letter needs to be on file during your course of study.
- Work-Related Seminar Participants
 - 1. Complete two (2) copies of the PER-SO form

- Immediately send one (1) copy of the PERSO form without the departmental signatures to the Department of Human Resources.
- 3 Send the second copy of the PER-SO form through your department to secure the Department Head's or designated representative 's signature.
- 4 Complete step B-2: The letter requested in this step must be AFPROVED PRIOR to the start of the seminar.
- V REIMBURSEMENT RATES: Reimbursement is based on grade and granted on the following basis upon submission of original grade reports and original receipts of payment to the Department of Personnel. The rates are as follows.
 - A Undergraduate School

```
Drade "A" Full time 400% Part time 50%
Grade "B" and "C" Full time -75% Fart time - 37 1/2%
```

Graduate and Professional School

- Grade 'A' Pull time .00% Part time 50%

 Orade 'B' Full time 75% Part time 37 1/2%

 Grades of 'O' are NCT relimbi isable at this level of study.
- C Grade of "bass" in a course graded on a Pass/Fail basis: Full time - 75% Part time - 37 1/2%
- D Work-related seminars are reurable used for the registration fee only.
- Failure to comply with this bourty will result in the disapproval of the application and non-payment of relimb insement. The Department of Human Resources will, in all cases, exercise the fluid judgment as to whether or not relimbursement will be granted and, if so, the amount of termbursement.

The Department of Human Resources will administer the Tunon Reimbursement program without regard to rice, union, religion, sex, ago, national origin or handicap.

In the event an employee commences an undergraduate or graduate degree uncluding a law degree) program after the execution of this agreement, and obtains an undergraduate or graduate degree with the assistance of the ruition reimbursement program, and the employee, within one (1) year of obtaining such degree voluntarily resigns from the City, all ruition costs (100%) reimbursed to the employee by the Employer for obtaining such degree shall be repaid to the Employee. If the employee voluntarily resigns after one (1) wear but less than two (2) years after obtaining the degree, the employee shall repay one-half (50%) of the ruition reimbursement to the Employee. If the employee does not complete the degree program and voluntarily resigns from the City the employee shall repay (00% of all ruition reimbursement received for any course completed within two (2) years of such resignation. Employees receiving ruition reimbursement for such degrees shall as a condition of receiving such reimbursement, execute an appropriate form consistent with this paragraph.

The provision shall not apply to reinflursement where the employee is required by the Employer to attend an educational or training program nor shall this provision apply to employees who resign from one department within the City of Chicago for the purpose of accepting employment within another City of Chicago Department.

CITY OF CHICAGO PROPOSED LETTER AGREEMENT 3/4/09

James Brennwald Assistant Chief Labor Counsel City of Chicago Department of Law 30 N LaSalle Street, Suite 1040 Chicago, Illinois 60602

Dear Mr. Brennwald:

This letter is to confirm our Agreement that Teamsters Local 743 ("the Union") will provide an itemized fair share notice (hereafter "Notice") which sets forth the major expenditures of the Union qualifying for fair share purposes, and a statement that the information on the Union's expenditures was obtained from the most recent annual audited financial statement of the Union. The Union will also provide, as part of the Notice, a description of the procedure available to non-member employees by an impartial decision-maker and a statement that disputed portions of fair share objectors' fair share fees will be placed in an escrow account while the objections are pending. Prior to distribution to non-members, the Union shall submit the Notice to the individual or official designated by the Employer for the purpose. The initial Union notice shall satisfy this requirement unless such notice is amended or changed.

The Employer will provide the Union with complete names and addresses, on a monthly basis for all persons hired, in the Union's bargaining unit. The Union shall notify in writing each non-member employee in its bargaining unit of his/her fair share obligation. The Union shall be responsible for distribution of all fair share notices to non-members, including new hires, upon receipt of names and addresses for these employees from the Employer. The Union will certify to the Employer that distribution of the Notice has been completed. The Employer shall not be responsible for the fair share processes, except as provided herein. The Employer shall not be a party to, but shall be bound by, any decision obtained through the Union's internal fair share dispute resolution procedure. The Employer shall not be responsible under any circumstances to guarantee the legal sufficiency or factual accuracy of the Union's fair share calculations, fair share amount or fair share procedures.

The Employer shall not be obligated to remit a fair share deduction to the Union until it has distributed a fair share notice and dispute resolution procedure consistent with the terms of this letter and of Article 14 of the collective hargaining agreement. In the event of a dispute as to compliance, the Employer and the Union shall place deductions in an interest bearing account

and proceed to an expedited arbitration on the issues(s) raised by the Employer.

It is further agreed in connection with the indemnification provisions of Article IX of the collective bargaining agreement that in the event of a claim, suit or demand brought against the Employer arising out of any action taken for the purpose of complying with the provisions of Article IX of the collective bargaining agreement, or in reliance on any list, notice, certification or assignment furnished thereunder, the Employer shall have the option of representing itself through the office of the Corporation Counsel or through the appointment of a Special Assistant Corporation Counsel In either event, the Employer shall be solely responsible for the payment of the attorney's fees so generated in representing itself. If, however, the Employer does not exercise either of the above options, the Union shall be solely responsible for the payment of attorney's fees mourred in the defense of the Employer, provided that the Union shall, after consulting with the Employer, select the attorney's to represent the Employer.

AGREED ₁		
CLIY OF CHICAGO		TEAMSTERS LOCAL 743
Ву	Ву:	
		Date:

July 21, 2011

Richard Cristo Teamsters Local 743 4620 S. Tripp Avenue Chicago, Illinois 60632

RE: City of Chicago and Teamsters Local 743
Conversion of Current Non-Career Service PHN IVs

Dear Mr. Cristo:

This is to confirm the agreement of the City of Chicago and Teamsters Local 743 ("Union") that, effective on the final date of ratification of the parties' 2010-2012 Agreement, all "non-Career Service" Public Health Nurse IVs ("PHN IVs") in the bargaining unit who, as of said date, (1) are either on the Employer's payroil, or on an approved leave of absence; and (2) have been employed by the City as a PHN IV for at least six (6) months, as such time period is determined under Section 6.2 of the Agreement; shall be converted to "Career Service" status in the PHN IV job classification.

Nothing in this letter of agreement shall be construed as affecting the determination of any PHN IV's seniority in accordance with the terms of Section 6.1 of the Agreement.

Please sign below to acknowledge the Union's agreement to the foregoing.

Sincerely,

James Q. Brennwald Chief Labor Negotiator (312) 744-5395

AUREEU:

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 743

Эн_____ Date:_____

cc. Jim Karagianes
Don O'Malley
Carol Hamburger

July 21, 2011

Richard Cristo Teamsters Local 743 4620 S. Tripp Avenue Chicago, Illinois 60632

RE: City of Chicago and Teamsters Local 743 Implementation of New Salary Schedule for Grade 6

Dear Mr. Cristo:

This is to confirm the parties' agreement that, in implementing Section 4.1a of the Agreement, the City will follow the attached "Guidelines For Implementation of Salary Schedule Adjustment for Grade 6."

Sincerely,

lames Q. Brennwald Chief Labor Negotiator (312) 744-5395

GREED:
TEAMSTERS LOCAL 74
3y:
Jare.

GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF SALARY SCHEDULE ADJUSTMENT FOR GRADE 5 6 and 7 (SECTIONS 4.1a and b)

7/21/11 (Revised 1/28/14)

NEW SALARY SCHEDULE RATES FOR GRADES 6 AND 7

- A. <u>Effective date:</u> This salary schedule adjustment will become effective on the first day of the first full payroll period following the final date of ratification of the CBA.
- Based on current salary schedule. Look at the current salary schedule.
- Grades 6 and 7 rates moved one step to the left. On the effective date of this salary schedule adjustment, the current step 1 (entry) rate drops off the table, the current step 2 rate becomes the new step 1 rate, the current step 3 rate becomes the new step 2 rate, etc. The new step 10 rate will be as set forth in Sections 4.1(a) and (b).

Z. PLACEMENT OF GRADES 6 AND 7 INCUMBENTS ON NEW SALARY SCHEDULE, ONE STEP TO THE LEFT

Follow the current rate. Also on the effective date of this salary schedule adjustment, incumbent employees in Grades 6 and 7 will be placed in the step in their grade that corresponds to their current step rate. That is, each such employee (except for employees at step 1 - see below) will be moved one step to the left, so the employee's current step rate will remain the same, at least initially

Eligible to advance/return to former step based on time already served at current step rate.

- (1) Incumbent employees who are moved one step to the left will retain their anniversary date, and will be eligible to advance/return to their former step (and the new, higher rate for that step) on the completion of one year at their current step rate (or, in the case of employees moved from step 2 to step 1, on the completion of six months at their current step rate).
- (2) In determining how long an employee has been at his/her current step rate, all time already served at the current step rate will be included.
- (3) An incumbent employee who has been moved one step to the left will be eligible to advance/return immediately to his/her former step (and the new, higher rate for that step) on the effective date of this salary schedule adjustment if (a) the employee's former step was 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 or 10, and the employee has already been at his/her current step rate for at least one year;

or (b) the employee's former step was 2, and the employee has already been at his/her current step rate for at least 6 months

(4) The effective date of this salary schedule adjustment will become the new anniversary date for employees who advance/return immediately to their former step.

3. INCLMBENT EMPLOYEES AT STEP ONE

Any employees who are at step 1 as of the effective date of this salary schedule adjustment will remain at step 1, but at the new, higher step 1 rate. The effective date of this salary schedule adjustment will become the new anniversary date for such employees, who will then become eligible for advancement to step 2 on the completion of 6 months at the new step 1 rate.

4. ADDITIONAL ACROSS-THE BOARD PERCENTAGE INCREASE ON JANUARY 1, 2016

After adjusting the rates for Grades 6 and 7 of the salary schedule as described above on the effective date of this salary schedule adjustment, and after placing incumbents in grades 6 and 7 in the appropriate steps, all steps in Grades 6 and 7 will be increased in accordance with the terms of Section 4.1c.

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT ON TELEWORKING

This Memorandum of Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of the dates ser forth below, by and between the City of Chicago and the Teamsters, Local 743 ("the Union").

This Agreement shall establish the framework for the implementation of a telework option for individual employees in certain job titles represented by the Union within the Department of Public Health in the City of Chicago. While the parties agree that allowing employees to perform their duties remotely may have a positive benefit to the Department's overall operation, the successful implementation of remote and/or hybrid work schedules depends upon a number of factors, including the specific nature of the duties of the job classification, the operational needs and efficiencies of the Department, the need to serve the public in an in-person capacity, the work load of an individual employee, an employee's individual work and disciplinary history, and the employee's ability to work in a remote and unsupervised work environment.

All employees who are selected for participation in a telework program will be subject to the terms of the current Telework Policy as implemented by the City of Chicago for its non-represented work force, and as this Policy may be amended from time to time by the City in its discretion. All references to the exclusion of "represented employees" in the policy shall be deemed to be inapplicable to members of the bargaining unit. A copy of the current Telework Policy is attached nereto and made a part of this Agreement. Such provisions of that Telework Policy shall include, but are not limited to, the following criteria:

- 1 All telework assignments will be subject to Department Head approval, which may be withdrawn at any time by the Department Head in their discretion, consistent with the Telework Policy.
- 2. Employees working in such arrangements must certify that they have sufficient work for a minimum of seven and one-half (7 and 1/2) hours a day of work, that they have not been on a performance improvement plan in the previous six (6) months or disciplined within the prior twelve (12) months, and that they have appropriate equipment and a safe work space to be able to work from home.



- 3. Employees working in such arrangements must sign a Telework Agreement, a copy of which is attached to the Telework Policy, as well as adhere to all conditions of telework assignment set forth by the Department.
- 4. Any violations of the Telework Policy, the Telework Agreement, and/or the specific conditions determined by the Department for that work assignment, will result in the loss of the telework arrangement, removal from any future telework assignments, and discipline up to and including discharge in the appropriate circumstances.
- 5. The provisions of the policy and its implementation are not subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions in Article 7 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

This policy shall become effective thirty (30) days from the date of signature of this Memorandum of Agreement as shown below and may be revised or withdrawn at any time by the City of Chicago upon prior written notice to the Union.

In witness whereof, the parties have affixed their signatures below by their authorized representatives.

CITY OF CHICAGO

Teamsters, Local 743

12324 Dated 122-2024

292